3

Contents

4

GENERAL INFORMATION

7

List of abbreviations acronyms

8

Statement of Responsibility and Confirmation of
Accuracy for the Annual Report

16

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

17

About GPW

18

Legislative and other mandates

22

Organisational Structure

23

GPW’s Flagship Projects

24

History and Milestones

25

Careers at the GPW

31

PERFORMANCE REPORT

33

AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES

33

GOVERNANCE

45

Report of the Audit Committee
for the financial year ended 31 March 2019

52

HUMAN RESOURCES

56

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

83

5

GENERAL INFORMATION

6

GPW A nnua l R e po r t 2 0 18 /19

GENERAL INFORMATION
NATURE OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Government Printing Works is tasked with the rendering of printing and related services to Government
Departments, Provincial Institutions and Local Authorities.

LEGAL FORM OF ENTITY
In accordance with the Public Service Act (No. 103 of 1994) as amended, The Government Printing Works
(GPW) is established as a Government Component.

REGISTERED OFFICE
149 Bosman Street, Pretoria, 0001

BUSINESS ADDRESS
149 Bosman Street, Pretoria, 0001

POSTAL ADDRESS
Private Bag X 85, Pretoria, 0001

AUDITORS
The Auditor-General of South Africa

BANKERS
ABSA						
Reserve Bank

ACCOUNTING OFFICER
Ms A Fosi
RP352/2019
ISBN: 978-0-621-47929-4
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List of abbreviations acronyms
ABBREVIATION

MEANING/DESCRIPTION

AFS

Annual Financial Statements

AG

Auditor-General

AGSA

Auditor-General of South Africa

APP

Annual Performance Plan

BAS

Basic Accounting System

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CFO

Chief Financial Officer

CoE

Compensation of Employees

CSIR

Council for Scientific and Industrial Research

DG

Director-General

DHA

Department of Home Affairs

DIRCO

Department of International Relations and Cooperation

DoL

Department of Labour

DPME

Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation

DPSA

Department of Public Service and Administration

DPW

Department of Public Works

EAP

Employee Assistance Programme

ENE

Estimates of National Expenditure

EXCO

Executive Committee

GPW

Government Printing Works

HDI

Historically Disadvantaged Individuals

HIV

Human Immunodeficiency Virus

HRP

Human Resources Plan
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ABBREVIATION

MEANING/DESCRIPTION

ICT

Information Communication Technology

ID document

Identity Document

MPSA

Minister for the Public Service and Administration

MTEF

Medium-term Expenditure Framework

MTSF

Medium-term Strategic Framework

NDP

National Development Plan

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

PMDS

Performance Management Development System

PPP

Public-private partnership

PSCBC

Public Service Co-ordinating Bargaining Council

PSETA

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

PTY Ltd

Proprietary Limited

RMC

Risk Management Committee

RSA

Republic of South Africa

SCM

Supply Chain Management

SCOPA

Standing Committee on Public Accounts

SITA

State Information Technology Agency

SLA

Service Level Agreement

SMS

Senior Management Service

SMART

Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Realistic, Time-bound

SOPs

Standard Operating Procedures

UPS

Uninterrupted Power Supply

VAT

Value-Added Tax
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Foreword
by the
Minister

GPW is a National Government Component of the National
Department of Home Affairs (DHA) following Proclamation in the
Government Gazette No. 32566, dated 11 September 2009 and as
referred to in Section 7(2) and 7(5) read with Schedule 3 Part A of
the Public Services Act 103 of 1994 (“Public Services Act”), that
operates within the public service established by section 197(1) of
the Constitution.
GPW’s main function is to provide security printing and ancillary
services to all organs of state in all spheres of government and
reports to the Minister of Home Affairs, with oversight by the
Parliamentary Portfolio Committee for Home Affairs. It is wholly
governed and regulated in accordance with the Public Service Act
(PSA) and the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA).
As a Government Component within the DHA, GPW supports the
constitutional and legislative mandates of the Department in terms
of the civic mandate through production of identity documents and
smart ID cards, among other things.

10
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The GPW’s engagement and collaboration with

plans will be put in place to tighten up control

existing government institutions such as, amongst

systems and processes in mitigating weaknesses.

others, the Council for Scientific and Industrial

These mitigation plans will be constantly monitored

Research (CSIR), Chartered Institute of Procurement

to see their full implementation and the ultimate

& Supply (CIPS), Human Sciences Research Council

clean audit that the organisation desires to see in

(HSRC), and Centre for Public Service Innovation

the immediate future.

(CPSI), has put it in a better position to achieve the
highest international secure standards and keep

GPW will continue to strive for growth and

pace with the 4th industrial revolution and the

development, whilst ensuring alignment with

global digital economy. The GPW will thus be able to

the National Development Plan outcomes and all

present solutions to enhance performance, improve

key priorities as outlined by the President of the

productivity and the quality of printing, packaging

Republic, in his State of the National Address 2019.

and publication services to government.
The year 2018/19 has been the last year of the
MTSF five year cycle 2014 - 2018. This brings to
importance the necessity for GPW to draw lessons
from this period under review, in particular to allow
the organisation to draw from strengths identified
and also, to mitigate against shortfalls that were
experienced. Since the financial year 2014/15 GPW
maintained good performance in most of its targets
with an average of 84%, over the five year cycle.

___________________________
THE HONOURABLE

The organisation saw a reduction in most of its

DR PA MOTSOALEDI, MP

targets as a way on focusing on strategic imperatives

MINISTER OF HOME AFFAIRS

and allowing other targets to be measured at
an operational level. Continuous effort has been
made every year to ensure improvements in the
performance planning process, whilst ensuring
alignment

with

applicable

National

Treasury

frameworks.
In 2018/19, GPW achieved 78% of its performance
targets despite challenges that were faced in the
year. Recognition is taken of all areas that were
highlighted by the Auditor General SA and mitigation
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Foreword
by the
Deputy
Minister
GPW as a Government Component within the

from GPW’s officials, as guided by the Batho Pele

Department of Home Affairs recognises all strategic

principles.

linkages that must be fostered with the Department,

GPW began a journey to recapitalise its asserts

in order to ensure relevance, quality and speedy

in order to enhance its operations and improve

delivery of the national security documents in line

efficiency. Completion of facilities will put GPW

with its mandate. Originally founded in 1888, GPW

at leverage to enhance its printing processes

boasts a rich and illustrious history from which it

and improve efficiencies. However, the financial

can draw strengths, amongst which are a proven

year 2018/19 despite some of its successes, saw

track record of producing security documents to

challenges in terms of its capex projects. The new

stage organs, an established government clientele,

Headquarters building as well as the Master plan

skilled workforce, world class security facility and

projects could not be completed due to procurement

investment in the latest printing technologies.

processes and other dependencies. It is pivotal
that as an organisation, we go back to the drawing

The GPW continues to implement its Integrated

board with renewed strategies to bolster not only

Marketing and Communication Strategy which

performance, but also increase productivity levels,

serves as an anchor to its efforts in engaging

business growth and attraction of new clientele

clients and strategic partners, to ensure a balance

and most of all, delivery in compliance with key

between the demand for products and services.

legislation.

This is paralleled by prompt and timely responses

12
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GPW is in the process of repositioning itself to

organisational structure and exploring competitive

respond to the opportunities brought to the fore by

remuneration packages through benchmarks with

the fourth industrial revolution. In the wake of this

its partners within the printing and manufacturing

technological revolution, recognition is taken of the

sector, in order to bolster its competitive advantage.

need for behavioural, attitudinal and work patterns,

Lastly, appreciation goes to the management corps

in order to deal with this phenomenon that is aimed

of GPW for steering the ship for the financial year

at improving how we do work. Investment into

under review, all officials for tirelessly working

attracting, developing and retaining the right skills

towards achievement of set targets and outputs,

sets will be at helm of the organisation and this

organised labour as a partner, oversight bodies for

will be demonstrated through training programmes

their guidance, DHA and all other client departments

and recruitment drives that shall follow in the new

and government institutions.

MTSF. The GPW is in the process of reviewing its

MR N. NZUZA, MP
DEPUTY MINISTER OF HOME AFFAIRS
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Acting Chief
Executive
Officer’s
Report
GPW made notable progress over the past financial

This Annual Report provides an account of GPW’s
performance against the strategic plan, the annual
performance plan 2018/19 and the budget as
approved by Parliament.

year in achieving its set objectives and targets.
As an organisation, we were able to make major
improvements in customer experience, continued
positive development in employee engagement and

Our financial performance

motivation and continued to deliver positive financial

Despite the challenging economic times, as an
organisation we have seen a 6% increase in revenue,
translating into just over R1.4 billion in total revenue.
GPW surrendered R300 million to the National
Treasury in accordance with Treasury Regulations.

results to keep the business sustainable.
The 4th Industrial Revolution as noted across all
sectors, government and private sectors alike,
demands for creativity, innovation and adaptation
towards rapid technological changes. GPW plays

Delivering on our strategic targets

a pivotal role in this change and aims to become a

GPW had a total of 23 performance targets for the
2018/19 financial year. Out of these targets 18 were
attained, demonstrating a 78% achievement.

trusted partner and our customers’ first choice.
GPW is the state’s mandated security printer and

This Annual Report is the result of work undertaken
by GPW’s management working closely with the
Audit and Risk Committees.

our core business remains security printing for the
state, in particular supporting the Department of
Home Affairs in the provision of secured documents.

The three strategic objectives of the GPW remained
as follows: to reposition GPW’s business processes
to ensure stability, sustainability and viability of
the organisation as a critical national security
facility, to optimise processes and facilities to
increase operational effectiveness and improve
customer service and lastly to ensure that GPW
has human capital that is efficient, effective, well
trained, and capacitated to deliver on its mandate.

GPW continues to provide this critical security
printing service to all departments and their agencies
in all spheres of government. Internationally trusted,
sophisticated and most secure printing equipment
are utilised to produce security documents such
as smart ID cards, travel documents, gazettes,
examination scripts and essential government forms
and documentation.
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The Pavilion 3 production facility was completed and

Therefore, investment in human capital contributes
to the economic and business growth for the
benefit of employees, employers and the country
as whole. As a result GPW has increased its
human capital development by offering bursaries
to its staff members, apprenticeship and internship
opportunities to unemployed graduates.

the migration of equipment from the old Bosman
Street facility, was concluded during the year under
review. The facility, which boasts a state-of-the-art
examinations print and packaging solutions houses
a high security document sortation and dispatching
system and an automated storage and retrieval
storage solution for paper reels.

The training of our key personnel has gradually
increased over this period whilst a number
of graduates who were provided internship
opportunities were absorbed permanently, into
GPW’s employment.

In the 2018/19 financial year, 3 122 489 smart ID cards,
993 726 travel documents, 30 697 558 examination
scripts, were produced and 2056 e-gazette editions
were published. The plan to digitise printing and to

Acknowledgements

introduce secure box packaging for examination

I wish to extend my sincere gratitude to the entire
GPW staff for their unwavering commitment and
dedication to upholding principles and the values
that kept us relevant.

papers was implemented during the 2018/19
financial year. This initiative is aimed at producing
high volumes of examination scripts within a short
turn-around time whilst reducing chances of leakage.

A special thanks to the management team for their
continued support in striving to deliver against our
commitments. A special word of thanks to the
DHA to whom we continue to be liable towards
production of security documents.

All smart ID cards and most passports are produced
by live capture in enabled Home Affairs offices,
minimising the risk of fraud or error. The plan
continues to be realisation of the objective that all
57 million South Africans be in possession of the

To our customers who do business with us, we
greatly value your continued support and partnership.

smart ID cards.
The security production of IDs and travel documents

Appreciation also goes to all our governance
structures for continually assisting us to achieve our
mandate, in line with principles of good corporate
governance.

remains compliant to clients’ specifications and
there were no security breaches and no loss or theft
of smart ID cards or passports during the financial
year under review. There were no breaches of ICT
security ICT systems availability were at 98%. GPW
and its governance structures will continue to work
together in the next MTEF to build GPW into secure
and modern state security printer.
Empowering our people
Management guru Peter Drucker once said. “The
most valuable asset of a 21st-century institution,
whether business or non-business, will be its
knowledge workers and their productivity.” Drucker’s
prescient observation clearly highlights the reality
that a majority of organisations, including GPW, face
in today’s “knowledge economy.”

____________________________
MS A FOSI
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
GOVERNMENT PRINTING WORKS
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Statement of Responsibility and
Confirmation of Accuracy for the
Annual Report
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report is consistent.
The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.
The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the annual report guidelines as issued by the National
Treasury.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards applicable to the government component.
The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the
judgments made in this information.
The accounting officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal
control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the
performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements.
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human
resources information and the financial affairs of the government component for the financial year
ended 31 March 2019.
Yours faithfully,

____________________________
MS A FOSI
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
17 October 2019
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STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

The Honourable Minister of Home Affairs,
Dr Aaron Motsoaledi gives an outline on the innovations,
achievements and progress made by the
GPW in achieving its objectives, while the Acting Chief
Executive Officer, Ms Alinah Fosi provides further
information on how the organisation is transforming into a
modern print and media company.
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About GPW
THE GPW’S MISSION AND VISION

The Government Printing Works, often referred to
as GPW, is a government component reporting to

GPW’s vision, mission and its business behaviour,

the Minister of Home Affairs; with oversight by the

are governed by this market demand, its core values

Parliamentary Portfolio Committee for Home Affairs.

and its key purpose of providing state departments

The organisation specialises in the printing and

with high security printed matter, thus enabling it

development of security media, including passports,

to eliminate counterfeiting of key documents and

visa, birth certificates, educational certificates,

maintain state security.

smart identity documents, examination materials,
and a wide range of other high security printed

VISION

documents.

To be the State’s mandated security printer.

Based in Pretoria, Gauteng, the GPW boasts a rich

MISSION

history of over 130 years’ experience in the printing

•

industry. The GPW has adhered to the goals of

To provide cost effective, reliable and timeous
services to all spheres of government in printing;

security printing, which is to prevent forgery,

•

counterfeiting and tampering which may lead to

To deliver equitable information to the public;
and

identity theft. Today, GPW ranks as one of the most

•

progressive security printing specialists in Africa,

To disseminate government information through
technology, innovation and service excellence

boasting a high-tech production facility with world
leading technologies.

Security documents are
documents containing
embedded security features
to protect the document
against criminal attacks.

18
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VALUES
•

Service oriented and excellent client experience

•

High productivity

•

High security

•

Equality and diversity

•

Quality and reliability

unlawfully obtains another’s personal details without
their knowledge, to commit fraud, has left many a
country vulnerable to criminal activities.
Document security features generally function on
three levels:
•

First level security consists of overt elements
such as watermarks and tactile features, which

SERVICE OFFERING

can be readily verified with the naked eye under

Having invested in modern and world-class printing

natural light.

and data management technology, the GPW is fully

•

Second level features are made up of hidden

equipped to meet its customers’ printing needs,

elements such as invisible ink and micro-printed

offering a comprehensive suite of standard printing,

text, which can be verified only with the use of

security printing and publishing services to the

elementary tools.

South African government. The GPW also supports

•

The most intricate, however, is the third level of

the dissemination of government information to the

security, which comprises covert elements, such

public.

as infrared detectable inks, that can be verified
only with the use of sophisticated laboratory

As publisher of Government Gazettes - the official

equipment.

publications used by government to communicate
messages of national importance to the general

The knowledge and capacity of GPW to produce

public - the GPW now also provides its customers

documents containing all three levels of security,

with convenient electronic access to submit content,

place it among the most modern printing facilities,

read current gazettes and access all back issues.

both locally and internationally, in particular as the

The GPW’s wide range of products and services

GPW encompasses international best practice

comprises printing services, security printing and

standards.

consulting services, gazette services, publications,
and government stationery services.

PASSPORT PRODUCTION
GPW offers an end-to-end passport production

SECURITY PRINTING SERVICES

solution, incorporating ICAO compliant booklets in

With advances in technology in modern printing

any configuration, with personalised polycarbonate

equipment becoming increasingly available to the

data

general public - including small printing, presses,

technology. Should it be required by the customer,

computers and photographic equipment document

the GPW can also produce blank ICAO compliant

security and solutions to eliminate the criminal attack

booklets

of key documents of the state are topical issues

incorporation of polycarbonate data pages, for

in the war against crime and state security. The

personalisation by the customer.

rise of identity theft, which occurs when someone

19

pages,

in

using

any

advanced

configuration,

laser

engraving

including

the

CARD MEDIA DEVELOPMENT

such as medicine registers for local clinics, patient
cards for hospitals and standard forms, which are

GPW can develop card type documents -smart

used across government departments, municipalities

cards with integrated circuits, such as identification

and other entities.

cards and drivers licenses, as well as regular cards,
including access control cards. This service includes

This division does not print, but supports the

the maintenance of internal computer servers to

procuring of stock, warehousing and distributing

accept downloaded data from customers, which

the orders to customers. The business unit

is used for card personalisation by either D2T2

operates from a 10,000 square metre warehouse

(full colour personalisation) or laser engraving.

in Zandfontein, Pretoria, and has regional support
offices in Mmabatho, Polokwane and East London.

DOCUMENT SECURITISATION
GOVERNMENT PUBLICATIONS

Breeder documents, such as birth certificates, have
high value in validating the holder’s citizenship and

Publications and hard copy items such as maps,

supporting the population control measures. The

aviation

GPW has sophisticated laser technology to create

logbooks,

SADC

road

traffic

signs

manuals, motor vehicle forms, patent journals and

high value security features in such documents.

terminology dictionaries, as well as self-help books

This technology is applied according to customers’

created to assist with the social and economic

preference, for instance in logos, special images

growth of all South Africans, fall under the

and numbering. The GPW also uses other various

Publications business unit. Also included among

security elements to secure documents, such as UV

publications are the Government Gazettes, which

inks, optically variable devices (OVDs), security foils

are available electronically on the GPW’s website –

and more, based on customers’ needs.

www.gpwonline.co.za

RUBBER STAMPS PRODUCTION

CUSTOMER SUPPORT

The GPW has a modern rubberstamp plant to

The GPW team consists of professionals with

produce regular rubberstamps. It also uses laser

numerous years of knowledge and experience in

technology to produce high security rubberstamps,

the fields of printing and security printing. Printing/

such as stamps used for border control (visa stamps).

security printing experts are committed to delivering
an end-to-end consulting service and informing the

NON SECURITY PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES

client about how the GPW can add value to their
project requirements.

GOVERNMENT STATIONERY
Consulting services include the following:

The GPW’s Stationery Services business unit is

Designing the document around the customers’

responsible for the provision of standard documents,

specifications;

20
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•

Advising on raw materials and best practices

newsletters, census forms, voter registration

printing;

forms and more.

•

Advising on security production processes;

•

•

Recommending printing methods and paper

white. Digital printing is used for production

•

Educating the client about the selection of

of variable data (no two documents are the

security features on offer to protect documents

same), such as voters’ rolls, personalisation of

from fraudulent attack.

documents such as certificates and more.

THE PRINTING SERVICES PROCESS

FINISHING

The GPW provides a full suite of services, which

After receiving printed matter from the print rooms,

comprises the three main disciplines related to the

finishing operations are executed to deliver the

development of printed matter - origination, printing

printed matter in its final format as:

and finishing - as well as related specialised services.

Sheeted

ORIGINATION
These services relate to the preparation of text, in a
Typesetting – a customer can deliver text in
written format, which the GPW will typeset.
•

Layout and design – the GPW can assist the
customer to design new documents and to do
the layout required for printing.

•

•

Fan folded packs

•

Sprocketed

continuous

stationery

(also

multipart)

format ready for printing, and include:
•

Digital printing – either full colour or black &

Acceptance of document in most electronic
formats and converting such documents to
printed formats.

•

Multipart snap sets

•

Folded forms

•

Perfect bound books

•

Multipart

•

Reel-to-reel format

•

Books (side stitched and saddle stitched)

•

Full-bound books (including genuine leather)

•

Foil blocking

The above includes the development of security

All of the above relate to both security and non-

features required to safeguard documents against

security printing jobs.

forgery, such as micro text, guilloche backgrounds,
vignettes and more.

PRINTING
Once the document is received from origination, it
can be printed as:
•

Offset printing – full colour, high quality printing
in sheet format, such as posters, annual reports,
passport visa pages and more.

•

Continuous printing – full colour jobs/ single
colour jobs printed in high volumes, including

21

Legislative and other mandates
GPW is a National Government Component reporting

GPW provides for the above three principles through

to the National Department of Home Affairs (DHA),

ensuring documentation of all citizens by producing

following Proclamation in the Government Gazette

identity documents as well the Smart ID cards for

No. 32566, dated 11 September 2009, and as

the Department.

referred to in Section 7(2) and 7(5) read with
Schedule 3 Part A of the Public Services Act 103

As highlighted in the DHA’s Strategic Plan,

of 1994 (as amended) (“Public Services Act”), that

immigration is not directly dealt with in the

operates within the Public Service established by

Constitution however, the freedom of the right of

section 197(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of

citizens to travel is entrenched. GPW is responsible

South Africa.

for the production of passports for all South Africans
who seek to travel within and outside the borders

GPW’s main function is to provide security printing

of Africa.

and ancillary services to all organs of state in all
spheres of government and reports to the Minister

In summary, some of the relevant elements in the

of Home Affairs, with oversight by the Parliamentary

Constitutional framework are that the Republic

Portfolio Committee for Home Affairs. It is wholly

of South Africa (RSA) is a sovereign state and all

governed and regulated in accordance with the PSA

citizens have a duty to protect it. South Africa is

and the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA).

committed to a better life, peace and security
for South Africans and all people of Africa and

As

a

Government

Component

within

the

the world. SA is a good global citizen, respecting

Department of Home Affairs (DHA), GPW supports

multilateralism and international commitments. All

the constitutional and legislative mandates of the

those who live in South Africa are equal in terms of

Department as follows: The civic mandate of the

basic human rights, although only citizens have the

Department of Home Affairs

right to vote, amongst other rights not afforded to
foreign nationals

The civic mandate of DHA which is grounded on
three sets of related principles. Firstly as stated in

GPW therefore supports of legislative mandates

Chapter 1, Section 3 of the Constitution:

in terms of the production of security documents

1.

covering births, marriages and deaths, identity

There is a common South African citizenship.

2. All citizens are (a) equally entitled to the rights,

documents and travel documents.

privileges and benefits of citizenship; and (b)
equally subject to the duties and responsibilities
of citizenship.
3. National legislation must provide for the
acquisition, loss and restoration of citizenship.”

22
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Organisational Structure
ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE: GOVERNMENT PRINTING WORKS

OFFICE OF THE CEO
Purpose: To supply governmental printing matter and render
specialiced security printing services
Functions:
RISK COMMITTEE

1. To ensure the rendering of strategic support and marketing services.

.

INTERNAL AUDIT

2. To ensure the production of security printing.

3. To ensure the provision of information communication and
technology services.
4. To ensure effective financial and supply chain management.
5. To ensure the availability of capable human resources.

PRODUCTION AND OPERATIONS

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT

INFORMATION COMMUNICATIONS
AND TECHNOLOGY

FINANCIAL SERVICES

HUMAN RESOURCES

Purpose: To produce secure and

Purpose: To render Strategic

Purpose: To provide information,

Purpose: To ensure effective

Purpose: To ensure the availability

quality Security Printing.

Support and Marketing Services

communication and technology

Financial and Supply Chain

of sufficient and effective Human

services.

Management.

Resources.

Functions:

Functions:

Functions:

Functions:

1. The managing of production,

1. The facilitating of the

1. The provision of

1. The provisioning of financial

1. The developing of human

planning business development and

development, alignment and

information communication and

accounting services.

resource strategies and the

maintenance.

implementation of the strategic

technology support services and

plan and related policies and

the managing and maintenance

2. The administering of costing

organisational structures to the

procedures.

of the GPW’s network infrastructure.

and management accounting.

GPW Strategic Plan.

2. The marketing of products and

2. The conduction of research,

3. The administering of the supply

2. The administering of the of

services.

development and maintenance

chain process and the rendering of

human resources provisioning and

of systems and the rendering of

logistical support services.

the conditions of service.

Functions:

2. The production of high security

,

ensuring of the alignment of

and other printing.

3. The rendering of legal services.

user support.
3. The promotion of the
development and utilisation of

4. The rendering of security services.

GPW human resources.
4. The supporting of sound
employee relations and the
managing of employee health and
wellness programmes.
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GPW’s Flagship Projects
GPW Modernisation

professional services team, and is presently being
executed by the Department of Public Works on

The GPW embarked on a program towards
development and the modernisation of its facilities
as follows:

behalf of the GPW. The specification has been
completed and awaits the appointment of a suitable
building contractor.

Pavilion 3 Construction Project

Equipment modernisation programme

The Pavilion 3 production facility was completed
and the migration of equipment from the old
Bosman Street facility, as well as new equipment
was concluded during the 2018/19 year. The facility
boasts a state-of-the-art, integrated examinations
print and packaging solutions. It also houses a
high security document sortation and dispatching
system and an automated storage and retrieval
storage solution for paper reels.

The GPW intends to continue with the equipment
modernisation programme in support of its strategic
plan. In this regard, the following is highlighted:

New dispatch centre
Following the construction of Pavilion 3, the
site acceptance testing sorting and facility was
concluded in the 3rd quarter of 2018/19. The solution
was tested and was ready for full production. The

New Headquarters

finalisation of the dispatch facility currently awaits

GPW previously procured a vacant, six-level
office block adjacent to the current Visagie Street
campus, with the vision of consolidating it to
serve as GPW’s Headquarters as from 2018. The
facility will be renovated into a modern building
with pedestrian bridge connecting Visagie factory
precinct and Administration Building across
the street. All Administration personnel will be
housed in the building. Overall estimated cost is at
R49 million and completion was planned for the third
quarter of 2018/19 however this was not achieved
due to procurement processes still needed to be
finalised, GPW continues to pursue this project in
the new financial year 2019/20.

integration into the DHA overall modernisation
solution. This is scheduled for the 3rd Quarter of the
2019/20 financial year.

Expansion of examination production
facility
The

GPW

has

technologically

commissioned

advanced

script

modern

and

sorting

and

packaging equipment. This mechanised line has
reduced the risk associated with manual sorting
and packaging operations. The GPW acquired
two additional examination packaging solutions
to augment the current automated capacity. The
equipment is currently undergoing installation and

Master plan project

commissioning.

The GPW Precinct will, upon completion in 2020,
comprise the remaining development of the Visagie
Street site, and incorporate the adjacent vacant land
known as the Minnaar Street site. This will fulfill the
total spatial requirements of the GPW, allowing it to
consolidate its entire operation in one precinct, and
will enable the transition from the legacy Bosman
Street site.

Standard Printing
GPW concluded the acquisition of a new kraft press.
It presently operates a kraft web-fed press for the
production of high-volume standard stationery.
This includes, amongst others, file folders utilised
for document administration at all government
institutions. The build lead-time is estimated to be
9 months and Factory Acceptance test is expected

The estimated cost associated with the Master Plan
project was revised to R 1.2 billion by the appointed

in the coming financial year.
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History and Milestones
Originally founded in 1888, the GPW boasts a rich,

slave trading company, imported a complete set of

illustrious - and sometimes challenging - history. In

printing machines and support equipment.

this section, we describe its evolution through the

This was installed in February 1800 at the company’s

passages of time. During its rule of the Western

premises situated at 35 Plein Street in Cape Town.

Cape region of South Africa from 1652 to 1799,

Subsequently, the company was appointed by

the Dutch East Indian Company did not allow the

Governor Yonge as the sole supplier of government

operation of printing facilities until its final years of

printed matter in the Cape colony. Yonge also

existence in the region. The first attempt to produce

authorized the company to produce a weekly

printed matter in the Cape was initiated during

gazette, which commenced circulation with effect

1782 by Governor van Plettenberg, when a ship,

from 1 August 1800, known as the “Kaapsche Stads

transporting money from the Netherlands, was

Courant”. This publication was the predecessor to

delayed due to poor weather conditions at sea. The

what is known as today’s “Government Gazette”.

resultant shortage of money left the governor with

Following his appointment as the new governor of

no other option but to produce primitive banknotes

the Cape colony during 1801, Major-General Dundas

on a parchment substrate, as an interim measure.

monopolised all government and commercial printing
and subsequently issued an order of attachment on

In 1784, Johann Christian Ritter, a Bavarian born

the printing facility of Walker & Robertson.

in Bayreuth in 1755, was appointed by the Dutch
East Indian Company to assume duties as an

On 8 October 1801, the entire printing works was

artisan bookbinder in the Cape. On a small printing

moved to the Castle and the first Government

press, he successfully produced a variety of maps

Printing Works (GPW) was established under the

for the organisation over the year, leading to the

supervision of Sir John Barrow, a government official

establishment of the first printing plant in the Cape

who also served as accounts auditor of the Cape

in 1785. Ritter was also appointed as the first printing

colony. Barrow retained this position until the British

superintendent. It is thus widely accepted that Ritter

reoccupied the Cape during 1806, when George

is the founder of the printing industry in the Republic

Ross was appointed the superintendent of printing.

of South Africa. A number of other artisans joined
Ritter’s printing company in the following years

The first apprentice to learn and complete a printing

and, although a variety of printed matter -such as

trade in South Africa was BJ van der Sandt, who

government notices, handbills and other documents

enrolled at the printing facility during 1811 and

– was produced, printing facilities remained limited

remained there until retirement age, eventually also

until 1800 when Walker & Robertson, a prominent

being appointed as the superintendent of printing.
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The year of 1824 saw a fierce battle break out

When Marthinus Wessel Pretorius became the

between the governor, Lord Charles Somerset, and a

president of the Republic of Transvaal in 1856, he

group of determined Scotsmen, comprising George

invited Cornelius Petrus Moll and Jan Cilliers to

Greig, a printer who originated from the King’s

establish a printing plant at Potchefstroom. This

Printing Office in Shacklewell, Thomas Pringle, who

company produced the first Government Gazette

was an 1820 settler, and John Fairbairn, a prominent

of the Republic on 25 September 1857. However

South African journalist. The struggle was an attempt

as Cornelis Moll also utilised the gazette to publish

by the group to break the government’s monopoly

his own editorial viewpoints in opposition to the

on printing and establish a free press, one that

government’s opinion, the president was forced to

continued for the next five years, which culminated

place the printing facility under direct government

in Sir Lowry Cole’s 1829 declaration of a free press

control, purchasing it from Moll and Cilliers in

in South Africa.

September 1859. Whilst Jan Cilliers moved back to
the Cape, Cornelius Moll retained his position as

The declaration saw an immediate increase in the

printing superintendent, and when the Republic of

number of commercial printers, with printing facilities

Transvaal moved its capital from Potchefstroom to

being established in places such as Grahamstown,

Pretoria in 1860, he relocated the entire printing

Port Elizabeth, Bloemfontein and Durban, among

works to Pretoria. Here, it was modernised to the

others. As a result, most of the printing presses at

extent that it produced the first postage stamps for

the Castle facility were sold during 1829 and the

Transvaal on 4 April 1879, utilising printing plates and

government’s printing requirements were divided

gum-paper from suppliers in Germany.

equally between the printing establishments of
George Greig and William Bridekirk.

During 1873, Cornelius Moll’s earlier partner, Jan
Cilliers, moved back to Pretoria from the Cape and

Bridekirk and his later associate, SJ Mollet, were

successfully negotiated to purchase the printing

awarded a 10-year government contract for the

works from the government. He then established

production of the Gazette. During 1847, Saul

the plant as a private printing works with contracts

Solomon & Company purchased Bridekirk’s printing

to produce printed matter for government, operating

facility and remained the government’s main printing

from his premises in Church Street, Pretoria, under

supplier until 1881, when a new company, WA

the name Cilliers and Rous. This position remained

Richards & Sons, obtained the majority of all the

unchanged until the annexation of the Republic of

government contracts. During this period, printing

Transvaal by the British Empire during 1877, when

establishments also expanded to other areas with

the British confiscated the printing works and utilised

the northbound movement of pioneers and the

the facility for the provision of local government

establishment of the Republic of Transvaal.

printed matter.

26

GPW A nnua l R e po r t 2 0 18 /19

However, when the war broke out, Cilliers managed

of Church Street. By the time the fire chief finally

to lay his hands on old, dilapidated machines, which

managed to put the police chief down, the entire

he repaired sufficiently to continue with the printing

GPW building had been completely incinerated.

of private documents and newsletters. General

Government decided to rebuild the building and the

Piet Joubert continuously collected donations and

new structure was completed on 29 May 1891.

utilised the funds for upgrading Cilliers’ existing
rundown machines and to purchase new equipment,

Continuous expansion of printing operations during

thus allowing him to maintain a printing facility of

the following years, led to government seeking out

reasonable proportion throughout the war.

alternative premises to house the printing works,
with eight stands, located in Koch Street, Pretoria

After the war ended, the House of Assembly

(today Bosman Street), purchased from the late

authorised government to establish a proper GPW

estate of AH Nelmapius during 1894. A tender was

on 4 July 1888, to procure the necessary equipment

awarded to a building contractor, WJ Geerts, to erect

for such a plant, and also to appoint printing staff

the buildings for an amount of 20,940 pounds and

on a permanent basis. In view of this, the printing

construction commenced during the same year. The

works,

maintained

building project was completed during 1897, at a final

during the war, was purchased by government to

cost of 24,504 pounds, and remains the distinctive

serve as a basic facility for further development.

red-brick head office of the GPW until this day.

which

Cilliers

successfully

On 1 August 1888, the new GPW commenced

FROM 1976 TO 2008

with its duties under the supervision of PWT Bell,
who was appointed as the first government printer

In 1976, the GPW was established as a trade

in South Africa. The printing works operated from

account. This meant that it had to operate on regular

premises situated between Church Street and

business principles and since then, financial viability

Bureau Street in the centre of Pretoria, with a staff

of the institution thus depended entirely on the

complement of two clerks, six typesetters and two

GPW’s ability to generate sufficient revenue from

machine operators.

services rendered to defray all its operational and
capital expenditure. Being functionally charged

On the afternoon of 14 March 1891, the building was

with the rendering of inter-departmental services,

struck by lightning and subsequently caught fire.

the National Treasury directed the trade account’s

Whilst the GPW staff attempted to put out the fire,

operations

the chief of local police and the fire chief could not

meeting its mandate required the GPW to make a

agree on who was in charge of the limited firefighting

substantial investment in sophisticated equipment

equipment. The disagreement quickly turned ugly

and processes, which, if restricted to the production

and the two officials became involved in a fistfight

of security printed matter only, would not be utilised

- one that lasted several minutes – in the middle

economically, and thus it was considered imperative
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within

the

following

framework;

time
The House of
Assembly
authorises
government to
establish a proper
GPW.

1888

1891

The GPW is struck
by lightning and
burns to the
ground, but is
rebuilt by
government.

The GPW’s
continuous
expansion leads
to the purchase of
eight stands on
today’s Bosman
Street in Pretoria.

1894
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1976

The GPW is
established as a
trade account.

All printing
facilities of the
former
independent
states and
self-governing
territories are
allocated to the
GPW.

1994
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line
Government Printing Works

1996

The GPW is
restructured.

The GPW is
established as a
government
component.

2009

2013

The GPW is
appointed by the
Department of
Home Affairs to
assist with the
rollout of South
Africa’s state of
the art smart ID
card.

The GPW reaches
the one million
mark for the
production of the
new smart ID
card.

2014
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2015

GPW
implemented
e-Gazette system.

GPW in the
process of
configuring
Dynamics Print
Solution for
production which
will be
implemented in
the following
financial year.

2016

FROM 2008 TO PRESENT DAY

imperative that other related services also be
rendered by the GPW to ensure optimum utilisation

During 2008, the GPW prepared a business case to

of the institution’s internal capacity.

propose its conversion to a government component.
During September 2008, this business case was

In view of this, the National Treasury directed that

presented to a joint panel (the National Treasury,

government institutions be obliged to source all

Department of Public Service and Administration

of their printing related services only from the

and the Department of Home Affairs), which was

GPW. This arrangement established the GPW as

then approved by the Ministers of Finance, Home

a centralised national printing facility with a stable

Affairs and Public Service and Administration

customer base, ensuring optimum utilisation of

respectively. Emanating from this process, the GPW

its infrastructure by rendering security printing

was established as a government component on

services as well as related non-security services to

9 October 2009 (refer Government Gazette 32616

government institutions.

dated 9 October 2009).

Following the 1994 general election, all printing
facilities of the former independent states and

Emphasis was placed on the filling of vacant funded

self-governing territories were allocated to the

positions in the organization, especially artisan

GPW. The new political dispensation implied

positions, which resulted in a lower vacancy rate.

that South Africa had six printing facilities and

The critical posts of chief executive officer and

the GPW, operating on business principles, had

general manager: operations and production were

to absorb all of them, resulting in a substantial

advertised, however the processes could not be

duplication of personnel and equipment. Given this

finalized within the financial year. One of the major

untenable situation, cabinet was approached with

challenges experienced by the GPW was with regard

a recommendation that the Department of Home

to the recruitment of artisans in the mechanized

Affairs be authorised to re-organise and rationalise

binding trade.

government’s printing functions. Cabinet approved
this recommendation on 24 February 1996. Upon
completion of its investigation, the Department of
Home Affairs submitted a cabinet memorandum
with

recommendations

that

certain

printing

facilities, such as the Umtata Printing Works, be
closed down, whilst others be restructured to serve
as provincial offices of the GPW. The restructuring
process resulted in the GPW’s head office in Pretoria
with regional offices in Polokwane, Mmabatho, East
London and Cape Town respectively.
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Careers at the t
The 2018/19 financial year saw a proactive effort placed
on

human

resources

development,

illustrated

by

27 graduates in the internship programme and 11
appointees in the apprentice programme.
Employees are valued and play a critical role in the
organisation’s growth and fulfillment of the strategic
objections. This is demonstrated by the number of the
annual performance targets achieved and service delivery
to clients. Focus therefore has remain on training and
development and various training opportunities were
offered to employees and a further 26 bursaries were
granted to employees to improve their educational
qualifications.
GPW continuously revisits its human resources policies
and procedures in order to strengthen compliance and
to contribute to a harmonious work environment where
employees can embrace the core values of GPW.
The employee Wellness Service is continuing rendering a
pro-active health care service and medical assistance on
the premise. All employees are encouraged to take part in
health and risk assessments and to fully make use of the
services offered.

31

32

GPW A nnua l R e po r t 2 0 18 /19

PERFORMANCE REPORT

AUDITOR
GENERAL’S
REPORT:
PREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES
The AGSA currently performs certain audit procedures
on the performance information to provide reasonable
assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit
conclusion on the performance against predetermined
objectives is included in the report to management, with
material findings being reported under the report on audit
of the annual performance section of the auditor’s report.
Refer to page 86 to 91 of the Report of the Auditor General.
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OVERALL PERFORMANCE

18

23

No of Branch Targets
45
26
28
25
23

Financial Year

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

GPW OVERALL ANNUAL PERFORMANCE

ANNUAL COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS AGAINST ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLANS

18

23

22

23

40

Achieved

5

2

6

3

5

Not Achieved

GPW’S ANNUAL COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS AGAINST THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

Achieved

Total planned targets

Below is a comparative annual performance analysis based on the past 5 financial years:

2.

GPW ANNUAL PERFORMANCE: 2018/19

of 78%.The summary is as follows:

78%

92%

79%

88%

89%

Annual % performance

5

Not Achieved

Government Printing Works had a total of 23 targets planned for the 2018/19 financial year. Eighteen (18) targets were achieved, representing overall achievement

1.

GOVERNMENT PRINTING WORKS – ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-2019

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

No of Branch Targets
23
22
22
23
0

Quarter

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

GPW OVERALL ANNUAL PERFORMANCE

SUMMARY: 2018/19 TARGETS

QUARTERLY COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS AGAINST ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

annual performance is as follows:

0

20

18

21

22

Achieved

0

3

4

1

1

Not Achieved

0

87%

82%

95%

95.6%

Quarterly % performance

An annual analysis of GPW’s performance against targets indicates 78% achievement rating due to five targets that were not attained. A breakdown of the

3.
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SUMMARY OF ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PER BRANCH: 2018/19

PRODUCTION AND OPERATIONS

BRANCH

Total targets = 04

OFFICE OF THE CEO

100% of Government Gazettes published to conform to quality and timeline specification

100% of examination papers delivered must conform to the client’s specifications

100% of Travel Documents delivered must conform to the client’s specifications

100% of Identity Documents/ Cards distributed must conform to the client’s specifications

100% newly identified and approved security products developed

100% of approved operations equipment migration plan to pavilion 3 implemented

Total targets= 06

TARGETS

100% of approved annual internal audit plan implemented

100% of identified ICT services offerings implemented

100% system availability

100% security vulnerabilities detected by security assessments mitigated

TARGETS: 2018/19

BRANCH

TABLE 04: SUMMARY OF ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PER BRANCH

performance status.








STATUS






STATUS

Financial Services had four (4) targets whilst the Human Resources branch had a total of three (3) targets. A summary table below demonstrates all targets and

CEO’s office) had four (4) targets planned for the year, branches Operations and Production as well as Strategic Management respectively had six (6) targets;

A breakdown of GPW’s performance per branch is highlighted in the table below. The Office of the CEO (with ICT and Internal Audit residing within the

4.
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Total targets= 03

HUMAN RESOURCES

70% of managers trained through leadership and management development programmes

85% of identified vacant positions filled

GPW organisational structure and salary dispensation completed

TARGETS

100% of GPW Headquarters building completed and Construction of 10% of the master plan completed

10% net profit margin

3 positive working capital ratio maintained

Clean audit opinion

Total targets= 04

TARGETS

100% legal opinions litigation cases handled and contracts (SLAs/MOU) drafted as per approved tender documents

100% implementation of the risk and compliance plan as approved by the risk committee

100% of the approved security plan implemented

100% monitoring of phase 01 implementation plan

1 new client signed up

100% implementation of integrated marketing and communication strategy and plan

Total targets= 06

TARGETS

BRANCH

FINANCE

BRANCH

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT

BRANCH





STATUS






STATUS








STATUS
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BRANCH: OFFICE OF THE CEO

5.1

Percentage availability of ICT
systems

Ensure ICT
availability

>99% server
availability

>99% security
vulnerabilities
mitigated

2017/18 Audited
Performance

Provide independent Percentage implementation of
and objective
the annual internal audit plan
assurance and
consulting services

Internal Audit
90% of annual
internal audit plan
implemented

Optimise ICT service Percentage of ICT services
>80% ICT services
offerings
offerings identified implemented offerings identified
implemented

Percentage of security
vulnerabilities detected by
security assessments mitigated

Branch Performance
Indicator

Secure and protect
ICT environment

ICT

Strategic Objective

100% ICT services
offerings identified
implemented

97.79% system
availability

99.67% security
vulnerabilities
detected by security
assessments
mitigated

Actual
Performance

100% of approved
100% of annual
annual internal audit internal audit plan
plan implemented
implemented

100% of
identified ICT
services offerings
implemented

100% system
availability

100% security
vulnerabilities
detected by security
assessments
mitigated

Annual target

X

X

Achieved

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES, BRANCH PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND TARGETS FOR 2018/19

BRANCH PERFORMANCE AGAINST TARGETS

5.

X

X

Not
Achieved

GOVERNMENT PRINTING WORKS – ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018

System availability affected
by factors such as power
availability and network/
system maintenance, leading to
downtime

100% not in line with industry
norms and target adjusted for
the subsequent financial year

Deviation
/Comments

BRANCH: OPERATIONS AND PRODUCTION

Percentage development of
newly identified and approved
security products

Percentage of identity
documents/ cards distributed
that conform to client
specifications

Percentage of travel documents
delivered, conform to client
specifications

Percentage of examinations
papers delivered that conform
to the client specifications

Percentage of Government
100% of
Gazettes published that conform Government
to client specifications
Gazettes published
that conform to
client specifications

Produce security
printed materials

Produce security
printed materials

Produce security
printed materials
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Produced security
printed materials

Coordinate
and distribute
Government
information

100% of
examination papers
delivered that
conform to client
specifications

100% Travel
documents delivered
that conform to the
client specifications

100% of identity
documents/ cards
distributed that
conform to client
specifications

3 new products
developed

3 new equipment
items procured
according to the
Recapitalisation plan

Percentage implementation
of the approved operations
equipment migration plan to
pavilion 3

Modern production
equipment for state
security printing
requirements

2017/18 Audited
Performance

Branch Performance
Indicator

Strategic Objective

100% of
Government
Gazettes published
that conform to
client specifications

100% of
examination papers
delivered that
conform to client
specifications

100% of travel
documents delivered
that conform to
client specifications

100% identity
documents/ cards
distributed that
conform to client
specifications

100% newly
identified and
approved security
products developed

100% of approved
operations
equipment migration
plan to pavilion 3
implemented

Annual target

100% of 2056
Government
Gazettes published
conformed to client
specifications

100% of 30 697
558 examination
papers delivered
conformed to client’s
specifications

100% of 993 726
travel Documents
delivered
conformed to clients
specifications

100% of 3 122 489
identity Documents/
Cards distributed and
conformed to client
specifications

Two (2) new products
were identified and
developed as follows;
Umalusi Certificate
Tourism Card

All the equipment
that was scheduled
for migration was
migrated to pavilion
3 as per migration
plan

Actual
Performance

X

X

X

X

X

X

Achieved

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES, BRANCH PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND TARGETS FOR 2018/19

5.2

Not
Achieved

Deviation/Comments
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Percentage implementation
of the approved integrated
marketing and communication
strategy and plan

Branch Performance
Indicator

Protect and secure
assets, people and
information

Security Service

GPW business
case implemented
in relation to key
critical areas

Strategic Support

Percentage implementation of
the approved security plan

Percentage monitoring of
the GPW business case and
approved implementation

Implement the
Number of new client signed up
integrated marketing
and communication
strategy and plan

Implement the
integrated marketing
and communication
strategy and plan

Marketing and Sales

Strategic Objective

Eswatini Vocational
Training

100% of integrated
marketing and
communication
strategy and plan
implemented.

Actual
Performance

100% of planned
activities as per the
approved security
plan implemented

100% monitoring
100% monitoring
of phase 01
of phase 01
implementation plan implementation plan
implemented

1 new client signed
up

100%
implementation of
integrated marketing
and communication
strategy and plan

Annual target

Implement 100%
100% of the
security programs in approved security
accordance with the plan implemented
approved plan

New target

New target

A total of 8 potential
client engaged for
purpose of growing
and sustaining the
business

2017/18 Audited
Performance

X

X

X

X

Achieved

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES, BRANCH PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND TARGETS FOR 2018/19

5.3 BRANCH: STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT

Not
Achieved

Deviation/Comments

Branch Performance
Indicator

Provide legal
advisory services,
legal opinions,
handle litigation
and the drafting
of legislation and
contracts to ensure
compliance

Legal Services

Formalise risk
management
practices and
ensure compliance

Percentage of legal opinions,
litigation cases handled and
contracts concluded

Percentage implementation of
the risk and compliance plan

Compliance & Risk Management

Strategic Objective

100% contracts
and SLAs drafted
for suppliers as per
procurement plan

100%
implementation
of the risk and
compliance plan

2017/18 Audited
Performance

100% of annual
risk and compliance
plan as approved by
the risk committee
implemented

Actual
Performance

100% contracts
(SLAs/MOU) drafted
as per approved
tender documents

100% contracts
(SLAs/MOU) drafted
as per approved
tender document

100% legal opinions 100% legal opinions
and litigation cases and litigation cases

100%
implementation
of the risk and
compliance plan as
approved by the risk
committee

Annual target

X

X

Achieved

Not
Achieved
Deviation/Comments
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Net profit margin

Complete construction of
secured facilities

Functional and
secure facilities

Positive working capital ratio

Provide quality
financial and supply
chain management
services complaint
with legislation and
policies

Provide quality
financial and supply
chain management
services complaint
with legislation and
policies

Audit report outcome

Branch Performance
Indicator

Provide quality
financial and supply
chain management
services in
compliance with
legislation and
policies

Strategic Objective

100% of GPW
Headquarters
building completed

Construction of 10%
of the master plan
completed

Construction of
remaining of GPW
Visagie street site
10% completed

10% net profit
margin

3 positive working
capital ratio
maintained

Clean audit opinion

Annual target

New head office
building design
& specification
completed

New target for
the financial year
2018/19.

5 positive working
capital ratio
maintained

Unqualified audit
opinion for 2017/18
maintained

2017/18 Audited
Performance

In progress

40% net profit
margin

18,1 positive
working capital
maintained

Audit action plan
was developed
for 2018/19 and
specific areas
addressed in
mitigating risks.

Actual
Performance

X

X

Achieved

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES, BRANCH PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND TARGETS FOR 2018/19

5.4 BRANCH: FINANCIAL SERVICES

X

X

Not
Achieved

The Bid Adjudication Committee
resolved not to award tender
and review.

Re-occurrence of irregular
expenditure and Interest not
charged to debtors

Deviation/
Comments

Percentage of managers
trained through leadership and
management development
programmes

Percentage of identified posts
filled

Implement the
human resources
recruitment plan

Leadership and
management skills
provided to support
service delivery and
professionalisation

Reviewed GPW organisational
structure and salary
dispensation

Branch Performance
Indicator

Reviewed GPW
organisational and
salary dispensation
in line with the
approved GPW
business case

Strategic Objective

New target

Fill in 85% of posts
identified for filling
in accordance with
HR staffing plan

New target

2017/18 Audited
Performance

70% of managers
trained through
leadership and
management
development
programmes

85% of identified
vacant positions
filled

GPW organisational
structure and
salary dispensation
completed

Annual target
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For the year 86 out
of 102 managers
were trained, which
translates to 84.3%.

The target for
the financial
year has been
achieved as 331 or
85.3% of the 388
requests received
appointments were
made.

In progress

Actual
Performance

X

X

Achieved

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES, BRANCH PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND TARGETS FOR 2018/19

5.4 BRANCH: HUMAN RESOURCES

X

Not
Achieved

Delays in target due to
consultation processes

Deviation/
Comments

GPW A nnua l R e po r t 2 0 18 /19

44

GPW A nnua l R e po r t 2 0 18 /19

GOVERNANCE

INTRODUCTION
The GPW is committed to continuously strengthening
compliance, managing risks and upholding good
governance within the governance, risk, and control
environment. Good governance is fundamental to the
management of public finances and the assurance
that the utilisation of the GPW resources is effective,
efficient and realises optimum value for money. This, in
turn, further enables the GPW to deliver on its mandate
with an accessible, service-centered and solutionsorientated delivery approach. The department strives to
achieve objectives and continuously drive improvement,
as well as maintain legal and ethical standing with
all stakeholders including the wider community. It
manages risks and uses resources responsibly and with
accountability. Good governance is achieved through
both performance and conformance.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
As an enterprise without voted fund, GPW is exposed to normal business risk and must adhere all relevant
legislation. The successful pursuit of performance objectives is dependent on the diligent management of
risk. To this end, a comprehensive enterprise risk management process has been implemented that enables
management to effectively deal with uncertainty and associated risk and opportunity, thus enhancing the
capacity to build value. Both the Risk Management Policy and Risk Management Strategy were put in place
in order to guide implementation of risk management processes within GPW. In terms of the provision of
oversight, the Audit Committee, and Risk Management Committees and the operational risk management
committee which is internal, were put into place.

Various risk registers are put in place including the strategic, operational (which include all business units), fraud
risk register and various projects risk registers. All registers are reviewed and updated quarterly, particularly
with regard to mitigation plans to reduce likelihood and/or impact of the risk.

Both the Audit and Risk Committees are governed by Charters which highlight terms of operation and the
frequency with which meetings takes place, generally on a quarterly basis. The effectives of risk management
methodologies and activities are assessed in this regard.

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
The GPW is fully committed to eradicate acts of malfeasance and corruption across all levels of the organization.
The Executive Management Committee (EXCO) has taken a stance against fraud and corruption, by supporting
all fraud eradication initiatives and putting into place policies and procedures to use within the organization.
Anti-Fraud and Corruption policies and procedures that were approved and implemented include the Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy and Strategy, Whistle-blowing Policy, Fraud reporting and investigation Policy,
Security Policy and the Vetting procedures.

Security Management Services (under the Strategic Management branch) is mandated to protect GPW
employees, clients, documents, information and assets. The unit is further mandated with the role to prevent
and combat corruption in order protect and promote GPW’s integrity and to ensure that all GPW’s operations
are conducted in a safe and fraud and corruption free environment.

GPW fosters ethical standards of good behavior by all GPW officials. All officials are required to declare
private business interests, provide disclosure of gifts and ensure compliance with the e-disclosure by National
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Treasury on an annual basis. Pre-employment screening of contract workers and newly appointed officials is
conducted as and when required. GPW submitted a total of 117 officials

(classified as priority in terms of

criticality of their functions) to State Security Agency (SSA) for vetting and 55 officials were vetted and issued
with security clearances. Anti-fraud and corruption awareness campaigns have continue to take place through
various means such as workshop presentations and online (intranet) messages during International Fraud
awareness week.

MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
To minimise conflict of interests, SMS members, Deputy Directors on salary level 11 and 12, employees
earning the equivalent salary of level 12 and 13 through Occupational Specifications Dispensation (OSD) and
Supply Chain Management officials are required to disclose their financial interests, in line with the Public
Service Regulations, 2016. Non-SMS members and SMS members are required to obtain approval from Head
of Department prior to conducting business outside the department on an annual basis in line with applicable
Public Service legislative framework. All officials were informed through a circular that conducting business
with organs of state is prohibited and further that permission is required before conducting business outside
the department. The department is relying on the Auditor General’s office to identify officials conducting
business with organs of state.

During the 2018/19 financial year, 100% SMS members submitted their financial disclosures on time by 30
April 2018.

CODE OF CONDUCT
The GPW applies the Code of Conduct for the Public Service and the disciplinary procedures for both SMS and
non-SMS officials without fail. A high standard of conduct is demanded of all officials irrespective of the rank
and position held in the department.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
GPW currently has a clinic that provides both primary health and occupational health care has been established
to serve Government Printing Works’ employees and annual medical checks are now compulsory. A service
provider has been acquired to provide 24 hours emotional and trauma counselling for employees and their
immediate families. Through these services, employees have access to a holistic health, safety and wellness
services.
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PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
The table below provides information regarding engagements the department had with the Portfolio Committee
on Home Affairs during the year under review.

No.

Date of
meeting

Agenda/topic

Matter
raised

How the
matter
was
addressed

1.

Tuesday –
14 August
2018

Briefing by the GPW on the Fourth Quarter Performance and Budget
for 2018/2019

None

N/A

2.

Thursday –
11 October
2018

Briefing by the Auditor-General on the Audit Outcomes of the
Department of Home Affairs, the Electoral Commission of South Africa
and the Government Printing Works (GPW)

None

N/A

Briefing by the GPW on the Annual Report for 2017/2018 Financial
Year

SCOPA RESOLUTIONS
During the 2018/19 financial year there were no resolutions passed by Scopa in regard to the GPW.

PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS
The department received an unqualified audit opinion in respect of the 2017/18 financial year.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
•

The audit scope encompassed the examination and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the organisation’s system of internal control and the quality of performance in carrying out assigned
responsibilities. Our audit scope included the following objectives:

•

Reliability and integrity of financial and operational information – Review the reliability and integrity of
financial and operating information and the means used to identify measures, classify, and report such
information.

•

Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts – Review the systems established
to ensure compliance with those laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts which could have a
significant impact on operations, and further determine whether the organization is in compliance.

•

Safeguarding of assets – Review the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verify the existence
of such assets.

•

Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programs – Appraise the effectiveness and efficiency with
which resources are employed.
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•

Achievement of the organization’s strategic objectives – Review operations or programs to ascertain
whether results are consistent with established objectives and goals and whether the operations or
programs are being carried out as planned.

INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE
•

Internal Audit Plans – Drafting, discussion and finalisation

•

Annual Review and updating of Internal Audit and Audit Committee Charters

•

Security Audit

•

Skills Audit

•

Payroll Audit

•

Risk Management

•

Supply Chain Management

•

Contract Management

•

Combined Assurance Plan

•

Inventory Management – Face Value

•

Quarterly Performance Information

•

Audit Committee Reporting

•

Internal Quality Assessment

•

Construction audit

•

Follow-up Audits

•

ISO Audit – Organisational Analysis

•

Regional Offices – East London & Limpopo

•

Information Systems Audits
--

Change Management and User Access Management

--

Remote Access, External web Application Assessment and Penetration Testing (Corporate Network)

--

Security Skills Assessment

--

Logging and Monitoring - Corporate Network (Maintenance, Monitoring and Analysis of Audit Logs)

--

Logging and Monitoring – Secure Printing Network (Maintenance, Monitoring and Analysis of Audit
Logs)

--

Advisory Work – ICT Frameworks, Policies and Guidelines

The overall objective of the Audit Committee is to provide independent oversight and assistance to the CEO
on GPW’s risk, control and compliance framework and its external accountability responsibilities.
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The audit committee amongst others review the

•

following:
•

as a result of internal and external audits;

The effectiveness of the internal control

•

The system of ICT governance;

systems;

•

The institution’s compliance with legal and

•

The effectiveness of the internal audit function;

•

The risk areas of the institution’s operations to

•

Any accounting and auditing concerns identified

regulatory provisions; and
•

The activities of the internal audit function,

be covered in the scope of internal and external

including

audits;

coordination with the external auditors, the

The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the

reports

financial information provided to management

the responses of management to specific

and other users of such information;

recommendations.
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Report of the Audit Committee
for the financial year ended 31
March 2019
In line with its strategic commitment to be a well-governed Government Component, the GPW strives
for effective oversight and monitoring of its governance regime. Vital to the achievement of this aim, is a
competent and independent Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee confirms that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38 (1)(a)
of the Public Finance Management Act, No.1 of 1999, as amended and Treasury Regulations 3.1. The Audit
Committee also reports that it has an appropriate Audit Committee Charter (including terms of reference)
which is reviewed annually. It regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter and has discharged all its
responsibilities as contained therein.
The Committee is pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 31 March 2019.
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE:
The Committee’s terms of reference requires that four (4) independent members, who have sufficient
qualifications and experience render the services associated with the Audit Committee Function. During the
year under review, three (3) Audit Committee meetings were held.

Name

Meetings attended Tenure Period 1

Tenure Period 2

Mr. SAH Kajee

3/3

Jan 2013 – Dec 2015

Jan 2016 – Dec 2018

Mr. A Amod

3/3

Jan 2013 – Dec 2015

Jan 2016 – Dec 2018

Ms. APC Mangoma

3/3

Feb 2016 – Jan 2019

n/a

Mr. D Fredericks

3/3

Feb 2016 – Jan 2019

n/a

The component ceased to have audit committee members at the end of January 2019. Post year-end a
new committee was appointed in May 2019 and the members of the audit committee are Mr T Mofokeng
(Chairperson), Mr Cde Kock, Ms M Mokoka, Ms G Sibiya and Mr J Kettle.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY
The Audit Committee is pleased to report that it has complied with its responsibility arising from its terms of
reference, including relevant legislative requirements.
For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee (in place during April 2018 to Jan 2019)
reviewed:
•

Quarterly Financial Statements;

•

The appropriateness of accounting policies and procedure;

•

The effectiveness of the system of Risk Management,

•

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations;

•

The system of ICT Governance; and

•

The Internal Audit and Audit Committee Charters.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee (in place from May 2019) reviewed:
•

Unaudited Annual Financial Statements before submission to the AGSA;

•

The appropriateness of accounting policies and procedure;

•

The Annual Report and predetermined objectives prior to submission to the AGSA and final publication;
and

•

The reports of the Auditor General.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
The Audit and Risk Committee has:
•

Reviewed and discussed the unaudited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report
with the AGSA, Accounting Officer and Management

•

Reviewed the Department’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

•

Reviewed the information on the predetermined objectives to be included in the annual report;

•

Reviewed the financial statements for any significant adjustments resulting from the audit; and

•

Reviewed the Auditor-General’s management report and Management’s response thereto.

The Government Component had adopted International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)for the first time
in 2019 reporting period. It was found that there were inadequate processes in place to prepare for the
implementation of IFRS. The audit committee had expressed concerns about accounting for estimates in
relation to the losses related to accounts receivable and the reassessment of useful lives on property plant
and equipment.
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THE EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The systems of internal control are designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded
and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. The Audit Committee has considered the work
performed by IA on a quarterly basis and IA tracking of outstanding audit findings on a quarterly basis.
In accordance with the PFMA and the King IV Report requirements relating to public sector, internal audit
provides the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and
effective. This is achieved by means of an appropriate quarterly reporting process, as well as the identification
of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.
Through the internal audit and external audit reports some deficiencies and weaknesses were noted that
require attention. In particular, the process of preparing, collating, recording and disclosing financial and
operational information will need significant improvement. Management action plans are being developed in
this regard and some have been put in place to address those control weaknesses and the implementation of
these plans will be vigilantly monitored by the Audit Committee.
INTERNAL AUDIT
We are satisfied that the internal audit function has operated effectively, that it has addressed the risks pertinent
to the GPW in its audits and has assisted the GPW with value adding services to ensure that both financial and
operational objectives are achieved. Internal Audit forms part of the third line of defence and engages with the
ﬁrst and second lines of defence to facilitate the escalation of key control breakdowns.
The Internal Audit department has a functional reporting line to the Audit Committee and an administrative
reporting line to the Acting Chief Executive Officer. The Audit Committee, with respect to its evaluation of
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, receives reports from Internal Audit on a quarterly basis,
assesses the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function, and reviews and approves the Internal Audit Annual
Operational and Three Year-Rolling Plans.
The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring that the GPW’s Internal Audit function is independent and
has the necessary resources, standing and authority within the GPW to enable it to discharge its duties. The
Internal Audit function’s Operational and Three Year Rolling Plans were approved by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee has overseen a process by which IA has performed audits according to a risk-based audit
plan where the effectiveness of the risk management and internal controls were evaluated. These evaluations
were the main input considered by the Audit Committee in reporting on the effectiveness of internal controls.
The Audit Committee is satisfied with the independence and effectiveness of the IA function
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IN-YEAR MANAGEMENT AND QUARTERLY REPORTING
The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly in-year management and performance
reports issued during the year under review by the Accounting Officer of the Government Printing Works in
terms of the National Treasury Regulations.
AGSA’S REPORT
The Audit Committee received, reviewed and noted the AGSA’s opinion regarding the Annual Financial
Statements, and proposes that the Audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together
with the report of the Auditor-General of South Africa. However, the committee has noted with concern
the qualified audit opinion resulting from the misstatement of both the accounts receivables and property,
plant and equipment, as it believes, with adequate planning the qualified opinion could have been averted.
Management has committed to an action plan to deal with matters relating to the preparation of financial and
operational reports.
FINANCE FUNCTION
During the 2018/19 audit, both the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Director responsible Financial Reporting
left the employ of GPW. As a result this affected the rapid collation of information and preparation of the
Annual Financial Statements. These posts will need to be filled timeously so that the finance function can be
adequately capacitated.
APPRECIATION
The Audit Committee wishes to acknowledge and thank the Management Team of the GPW and the Accounting
Officer, on their continued commitment to the improvement of the internal control environment of GPW.
The Audit Committee expresses its appreciation to the Accounting Officer, Management team, Internal Audit
and the Auditor-General for their contribution in fulfilling their obligations.

MR. T MOFOKENG

Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 29 October 2019
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HUMAN RESOURCES

INTRODUCTION
The information contained in this part of the Annual
Report has been prescribed by the Minister for the
Public Service and Administration for all departments
in the Public Service

OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES
The Human Resources Branch is responsible for the
overall human capital management and development
function, through the development of human
resources strategies and plans, ensuring that GPW’s
organisatinal structure is aligned to its strategic plan.
The branch ensures that GPW is aligned to DPSA
directives and guidelines.
GPW has successfully implemented the Performance
Management System that ensures that every
employee’s performance and their contribution to
the organisations performance is accounted for.
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Due to the nature of our business (manufacturing)

appointments

employees health, safety and wellness is critical

(Table 3.5.1), 50 were on salary levels 3 – 8 whilst

to GPW. A fully functional clinic that provide both

in the 207/2018 reporting year 59 permanent

primary health and occupational health care has

appointments were done of which 32 were on

been established to serve Government Printing

salary levels 3 – 8. Of the total of 38 terminations

Works’ employees and annual medical checks are

(Table 3.5.3), 47.4% of the terminations were

now compulsory. In addition, a service provider has

due to resignationts and 36.9% were as a result

also been acquired to provide 24 hours emotional

of retirements. In the previous reporting year,

and trauma counselling for employees and their

2017/2018 41 resignations were reported of which,

immediate

39.0% of the terminations were due to resignations

families.

Through

these

services,

employees have access to a holistics health, safety

made

in

the

reporting

period

and 26.8% were as a result of retirements

and wellness services.
Table 3.6.1 reflects that the staff profile of the GPW
The number of filled posts on the establishment

is as follows: 39.1%

black female, 43.4% black

of GPW increased in the 2018/2019 reporting year

male,

from 604 (of which 37 were appointed in addition

The representativity of females at SMS level (Levels

to establishment requirements) in 2017/2018 to

13 - 16) is at 45%, a deficit of 5% to reach the

616 (of which 31 were additional employments) in

national target of 50% women on SMS level.

8.6% white female and 8.9% white male.

2018/2019. The vacancy rate decreased to 14.1% in
the reporting year, with the highest vacancy rate on

All (100%) SMS members in the GPW signed

SMS level reported as 16.7% in the reporting period,

their performance agreements by 31 May 2018,

whilst reported as 28,6% in the 2017/2018 reporting

(Table 3.7.1). Performance rewards were paid to 303

year. (Table 3.2.1).

employees for the performance cycle 2017/2018
(Table 3.8.1) compared to the 255 employees

Table 3.1.1 shows that GPW spent 22.8% of the

who received performance awards in the previous

total operational expenditure for compensation. The

performance cycle (2016/2017).

largest percentage of personnel cost relates to the
compensation of employees on salary levels 3 – 8

For the period January 2018 to December 2018,

(Table 3.1.2).

a total of 3 391 days were utilised for sick leave,
compared to the 4 567 days utilised for sick leave

There were 7 posts out of a total of 686 permanent

in the 2017 calendar year. The number of staff

funded posts subjected to job evaluation during

members that used sick leave came to 537 (Table

the period under review; and all were on salary

3.10.1) and reflects an average of 6 days sick leave

levels 3 – 5. None of the posts was downgraded or

per employee who used sick leave compared to the

upgraded in the reporting period (Table 4.1).

average of 8 days sick leave per employee who used
sick leave in 2017.

Appointments

are

reflected

as

permanent

appointments and Seasonal Contract Employment
and Interns. Of the total of 69 permanent
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1.

HUMAN RESOURCES

1.

SERVICE DELIVERY

The tables below reflect the components of the Service Delivery Improvement Plan as well as progress made
in the implementation thereof.
Table 1.1 – Main service for service delivery improvement and standards
Main Services

Actual Customers

Potential Customers
who may be integrated

Standard of Services

Actual Achievements
against Standards

Printing

All Public Service
Departments and South
African citizens.

African countries that
may require security
printing services.

Service Delivery
The re-capitalization
Standards are set out in programme and building
the GPW Business Model. of printing capacity.

Table 1.2– Consultation arrangements for customers
Type of arrangement

Actual Customer

Potential Customer

Actual achievements

Direct interaction with clients.

All Public Service
Departments and South
African citizens.

Not applicable.

Direct consultation,
workshops and information
sessions.

The implementation of theGazette solution to be fully
effective in 2015/2016.

Table 1.3– Service delivery strategy
Strategy

Actual Achievements

Continuous interactions with various customers and stakeholders
to build on improved relations.

Improved capacity and on time services.

Commissioning of new equipment.
Implementation of new technology.
Table 1.4 – Service information tool
Type of Information Tool

Actual Achievements

Daily interaction with various customers and stakeholders.

Rendering of additional services.

Table 1. 5 – Complaints mechanism
Complaints Mechanism

Actual Achievements

Suggestion boxes.

Suggestion box information analyzed regular and feedback is
provided to staff by means of various types of information sharing
sessions.

Hotline at the Department of Home Affairs and Public
Service Commission.
Communication to employees.

Regular communication sent out to employees on procedures and
who to approach as well as posters.
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2.

EXPENDITURE

The Government Printing Works budgets in terms of clearly defined programmes. The tables below summarise
final audited expenditure (Table 2.1) and by salary level (Table 2.2). In particular, it provides an indication of the
amount spent on personnel costs in terms of the salary bands within the Government Printing Works.
Table 2. 1 – Personnel costs
Total
Expenditure

Personnel
Expenditure

Training
Expenditure

Professional
and Special
Services

(R’000)

(R’000)

(R’000)

(R’000)

Government
Printing
Works

1 027 968

235 076

4 008

42 562

23

380 416

616

Total

1 027 968

235 076

4 008

42 562

23

380 416

616

Programme

Personnel Cost
as % of Total
Expenditure

Average
Personnel Cost
per Employee

Employment
as at 31 March
2019

(R’)

Note “Personnel expenditure includes provisions for leave and adjustments”.
Table 2.2 – Personnel costs by salary band

Salary Bands

Personnel Expenditure

Percentage of Total
Personnel Cost

(R’000)

Average Personnel
Cost per Employee
(R’)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

1 805

0.8

225 625

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

75 053

32.0

262 423

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

69 059

29.5

387 972

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

46 221

19.7

733 667

Senior management (Levels 13-16)

22 018

9.4

1 223 222

Contract Skilled (Levels 1-2)

265

0.1

37 857

Contract Skilled (Levels 3-5)

13 976

6.0

399 314

Contract Senior management (Levels 13-16)

3 972

1.7

1 986 000

Contract other

1 967

0.8

103 526

234 336

100

380 416

Total
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Table 2.3 – Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical aid
Salaries
Programme
Amount

Home Owners
Allowance

Overtime

Salaries as %
of Personnel
Costs

(R’000)

Amount

Overtime
as % of
Personnel
Costs

HOA as %
of Personnel
Costs

Amount

(R’000)

Medical Assistance

(R’000)

Amount

Medical
Ass. as %
of Personnel
Costs

(R’000)

Government
Printing
Works

177 328

75.6

15 752

6.7

7 678

3.3

11 941

5.1

Total

177 328

75.6

15 752

6.7

7 678

3.3

11 941

5.1

Table 2.4 – Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical aid by salary band
Salaries
Salary Bands

Amount

Overtime

Home Owners
Allowance

Medical Assistance

Medical
Salaries Amount Overtime Amount HOA as Amount
Ass. as
as % of
as % of
% of
% of
Personnel
Personnel
Personnel
Personnel
Costs
Costs
Costs
Costs

(R’000)

(R’000)

(R’000)

(R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

1 219

67.5

46

2.5

156

8.6

242

13.4

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

50 222

66.9

7 288

9.7

4 425

5.9

6 662

8.9

Highly skilled production
(Levels 6-8)

52 081

75.4

4 087

5.9

2 522

3.6

4 002

5.8

Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9-12)

38 229

82.6

1 055

2.3

425

0.9

816

1.8

Senior management
(Levels 13-16)

19 346

87.4

0

0.0

136

0.6

100

0.5

Contract Skilled (Levels 1-2)

250

94.3

15

5.7

0

0.0

0

0.0

Contract Skilled (Levels 3-5)

10 290

73.6

3 177

22.7

15

0.1

119

0.9

Contract Senior management
(Levels 13-16)

3 810

95.2

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Contract other

1 880

95.4

85

4.3

0

0.0

0

0.0

177 328

75.6

15 752

6.7

7 678

3.3

11 941

5.1

Total
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3.

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

The tables in this section summarise the position with regard to employment and vacancies.
The following tables summarise the number of posts of the establishment, the number of employees, the
vacancy rate and whether there are any staff that are additional to the establishment.
Table 3.1 – Employment and vacancies, 31 March 2019
Number of Posts

Number of Posts
Filled

Vacancy Rate

Number of Posts
Filled Additional to
the Establishment

Government Printing Works

717

616

14.1

31

Total

717

616

14.1

31

Programme

Note “Number of Posts Filled Additional to the Establishment” column included in “Number of Posts” column.
Table 3.2 – Employment and vacancies by salary bands, 31 March 2019

Number of Posts

Number of Posts
Filled

Vacancy Rate

Number of Posts
Filled Additional to
the Establishment

9

8

11.1

0

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

368

317

14.1

0

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

213

178

16.4

0

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

73

63

13.7

0

Senior management (Levels 13-16)

24

20

16.7

1

Interns and Apprentices

30

30

0

30

Total

717

616

14.1

1

Salary Band
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

Table 3.3 – Employment and vacancies by critical occupation, 31 March 2019

Number of Posts

Number of Posts
Filled

Vacancy Rate

Number of Posts
Filled Additional to
the Establishment

Photographic, Lithographic and Related

10

6

40.0

0

Printing management and supervisory
personnel

45

38

15.6

0

Binding and related workers

40

32

20.0

0

Total

95

76

20.0

0

Critical Occupation
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Table 3.4 - Filling of SMS Posts
The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies as it relates to members of the
Senior Management Service by salary level. It also provides information on advertising and filling of SMS
posts, reasons for not complying with prescribed time frames and disciplinary steps taken.
Table 3.4.1 SMS post information as on 31 March 2019
Total number
of funded SMS
posts

Total number of
SMS posts filled

% of SMS posts
filled

Total number
of SMS posts
vacant

% of SMS posts
vacant

Senior Management Service Band A

13

11

84.6

2

15.4

Senior Management Service Band B

6

6

100

0

0.0

Senior Management Service Band C

4

3

75.0

1

25.0

Senior Management Service Band D

1

0

0.0

1

100

Total

24

20

83.3%

4

16.7%

SMS Level

Table 3.4.2 SMS post information as on 30 September 2018
Total number
of funded SMS
posts

Total number of
SMS posts filled

% of SMS posts
filled

Total number
of SMS posts
vacant

% of SMS posts
vacant

Senior Management Service Band A

13

11

84.6

2

15.4

Senior Management Service Band B

6

6

100

0

0.0

Senior Management Service Band C

4

3

75.0

1

25.0

Senior Management Service Band D

1

0

0.0

1

100

Total

24

20

83.3

4

16.7

SMS Level

Table 3.4.3 Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019
Advertising

Filling of Posts

Number of vacancies per
level advertised in 6 months
of becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per
level filled in 6 months of
becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per
level not filled in 6 months
but filled in 12 months

Senior Management Service Band A

2

0

0

Senior Management Service Band B

0

0

0

Senior Management Service Band C

1

0

0

Senior Management Service Band D

1

0

0

Total

4

0

0

SMS Level
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Table 3.4.4 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS posts - Advertised
within 6 months and filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for the period 1 April 2018 and 31
March 2019
Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months
Identified vacancies have been advertised during the financial year.

Reasons for vacancies not filled within twelve months
Changes in ministry and posts have to be re-advertised as suitable candidates were not identified.

4.

JOB EVALUATION

The following table (Table 4.1) summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under
review. The table also provides the statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.
Table 4.1 – Job Evaluation

Salary Band
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
Skilled (Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production 		
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision 		
(Levels 9-12)
Senior Management Service Band
A
Senior Management Service Band
B
Senior Management Service Band
C
Senior Management Service Band
D
Total

Number
of Posts

Number
of Jobs
Evaluated

% of Posts
Evaluated

Number
of Posts
Upgraded

% of
Upgraded
Posts
Evaluated

% of
Number
Downgraded
of Posts
Posts
Downgraded
Evaluated

9

0

0

0

0

0

0

368

7

1.9

0

0.0

0

0

213

0

0

0

0

0

0

73

0

0

0

0

0

0

13

0

0

0

0

0

0

6

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

686

7

1.9

0

0.0

0

0

Table 4.2 – Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded
Beneficiaries

African

Asian

Coloured

White

Total

Beneficiaries

0

0

0

0

0

Note: Beneficiaries referrer to the implementation of 2018 / 2019 job evaluation results.
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Table 4.3 – Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by Job Evaluation
Total number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the upgrades determined by job
evaluation in 2018/2019

0

Table 4.4 –- Profile of employees whose salary level exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation
[i.t.o. PSR 1.V.C.3]
Beneficiaries

African

Asian

Coloured

White

Total

Female

0

0

0

0

0

Male

0

0

0

0

0

Total

0

0

0

0

0

Employees with a Disability

0

0

0

0

0

5.

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Table 5.1 summarises
appointments, promotions and service terminations by race, gender and disability. In addition, the table
provides an indication of the impact of these changes on the employment of the Government Printing Works.
Table 5.1 – Annual turnover rates by salary band
Employment at
Beginning of Period

Appointments

Terminations

Turnover Rate

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

10

0

0

0.0

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

284

28

21

7.4

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

171

22

11

6.4

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12 )

58

7

5

8.6

Senior Management Service Band A

9

1

0

0.0

Senior Management Service Band B

6

0

0

0.0

Senior Management Service Band C

2

0

0

50.0

Senior Management Service Band D

0

0

0

0.0

Contract Senior Management Service Band A

1

0

0

0.00

Contract Senior Management Service Band C

2

0

1

50.0

Contract lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

0

11

0

0.0

543

69

38

7.0

Salary Band

Total

Contract lower skilled (Levels 1-2) appointments reflect the apprenticeship programme appointments.
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SEASONAL CONTACT EMPLOYMENT AND INTERNS
Employment at Beginning
of Period

Appointments

Terminations

Contract Skilled (Levels 1-2)

0

8

1

Contract Skilled (Levels 3-5)

11

202

210

Interns

30

03

22

Total

41

213

233

Salary Band

Note 1: A total of 202 contract employees (levels 3 – 5) were appointed for periods of 3 months or shorter during
the financial year to assist with special projects. These appointments and service terminations are not reflected in
the above-mentioned information (Table 5.1), however are indicated separately.
Table 5.2 – Annual turnover rates by critical occupation
Employment at Beginning
of Period

Appointments

Terminations

Turnover Rate

Photographic, Lithographic and Related

10

1

0

0.0

Printing management and supervisory
personnel

33

2

2

6.1

Bookbinding and related machine operators

23

6

2

8.7

Total

66

9

4

6.1

Occupation

Table 5.3 – Reasons why staff are leaving Government Printing Works
Number

Percentage of Total
Resignations

Percentage of Total
Employment

Death

1

2.6

0.2

Resignation

18

47.4

3.3

Expiry of contract

1

2.6

0.2

Discharged due to ill health

2

5.3

0.4

Dismissal-misconduct

3

7.9

0.6

Retirement

9

23.7

1.7

Early Retirement age 55 - 60

3

7.9

0.6

Transfer to another institution

1

2.6

0.2

Total

38

100

7.0

Termination Type

Resignations as % of Permanent Employment
7.0%
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TABLE 5.4 - Granting of Employee Initiated Severance Packages
No Employee Initiated Severance Package applications were received or granted during the financial year.
Table 5.5 - Promotions by critical occupation
Occupation

Employment at
Beginning of
Period

Promotions to
another Salary
Level

Salary Level
Promotions
as a % of
Employment

Progressions to
another Notch
within Salary
Level

Notch
progressions
as a % of
Employment

10

0

0.0

7

70.0

33

5

15.2

23

69.7

23

3

13.0

11

47.8

66

8

12.1

41

62.1

Photographic, Lithographic and Related
Printing management and supervisory
personnel
Bookbinding and related machine
operators
Total
Table 5.6 - Promotions by salary band
Salary Band

Progressions to
Employment at Promotions to
Salary Level
another notch
Beginning of another salary Promotions as a
within Salary
Period
level
% of employment
Level

Notch
progressions
as a % of
employment

Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2)

10

0

0.0

0

0.0

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

284

5

1.8

212

74.6

Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8)

171

14

8.2

101

59.1

Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12)

58

3

5.2

29

50.0

Senior Management (Levels 13-16)

17

0

0.0

11

64,7

Contract Skilled (Levels 3-5)

41

0

0.0

0

0.0

Contract Senior Management (Levels 13-16)

3

0

0.0

0

0.0

584

22

3.8

353

60.4

TOTAL

Note: - Internship appointees and short-term contract appointments are not included in Table 5.6.
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6.

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998.
Table 6.1 – Total Number Of Employees (Including Employees With Disabilities) Per Occupational
Category (Sasco)
Occupational
Categories

Male,
African

Male,
Coloured

Male,
Indian

Male,
Total
Blacks

Male,
White

Female,
African

Senior officials and
managers

8

0

2

10

1

6

1

0

7

1

19

Professionals

14

1

0

15

4

13

0

1

14

2

35

Technicians
and associate
professionals

49

3

0

52

8

41

2

3

46

11

117

Clerks

29

1

1

31

1

57

4

1

62

12

106

16

1

0

17

1

4

0

0

4

0

22

60

7

3

70

18

27

0

0

27

6

121

53

3

0

56

18

66

3

0

69

20

163

16

0

0

16

4

12

0

0

12

1

33

245

16

6

267

55

226

10

5

241

53

616

Service and sales
workers
Craft and related
trades workers
Plant and machine
operators and
assemblers
Elementary
occupations
Total

Female, Female,
Coloured Indian

Female,
Female,
Total
White
Blacks

Total

Occupational
Categories

Male,
African

Male,
Coloured

Male,
Indian

Male,
Total
Blacks

Male,
White

Female,
African

Female,
Coloured

Female,
Indian

Female,
Total
Blacks

Female
White

Total

Employees
with
disabilities

2

0

0

2

3

1

0

0

1

3

9
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Table 6.2 - TTotal number of Employees (incl. Employees with disabilities) per Occupational Band
Occupational B and

Male,
Male,
Male,
African Coloured Indian

Male,
Total
Blacks

Male, Female, Female, Female,
White African Coloured Indian

Female,
Total
Blacks

Female,
White

Total

Top Management

0

0

0

0

0

1

1

0

2

0

2

Senior Management

8

0

1

9

1

5

0

0

5

1

16

Professionally
qualified and
experienced
specialists and
mid-management

30

2

2

34

6

18

0

3

21

2

63

Skilled technical
and academically
qualified workers,
junior management,
supervisors

60

7

2

69

17

64

3

2

69

23

178

Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision making

117

7

0

124

31

99

6

0

105

26

286

Unskilled and defined
decision making

2

0

0

2

0

6

0

0

6

0

8

Contract
(Top Management)

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

1

0

1

Contract
(Senior Management)

0

0

1

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

Contract
(Semi-skilled)

24

0

0

24

0

29

0

0

29

1

54

Contract (Unskilled
and defined decision
making)

4

0

0

4

0

3

0

0

3

0

7

245

16

6

267

55

226

10

5

241

53

616

Total

67

Table 6.3 – Recruitment
Occupational Band

Male,
African

Male,
Coloured

Male,
Indian

Male,
Total
Blacks

Top Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

1

0

4

0

0

4

12

2

1

8

0

4

Senior
Management
Professionally
qualified and
experienced
specialists and
mid-management
Skilled technical
and academically
qualified
workers, junior
management,
supervisors.
Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision making
Contract (Unskilled
and defined
decision making)
Interns and
Apprentices
Total

Female,
Indian

Female,
Total
Blacks

Female,
White

Total

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

3

0

0

3

0

7

15

1

6

0

0

6

0

22

0

8

0

10

0

0

9

0

18

0

0

4

0

4

0

0

4

0

8

7

0

0

7

0

6

0

0

6

0

13

36

2

1

39

1

29

0

0

29

0

69

Male, Female, Female,
White African Coloured

SPECIAL PROJECT APPOINTMENTS, SHORT TERM APPOINTMENTS LESS THAN SIX
MONTHS
Occupational Band

Male,
Male,
African Coloured

Male,
Indian

Male,
Total
Blacks

Male,
White

Female,
African

Female,
Coloured

Female,
Indian

Female,
Total
Blacks

Female,
White

Total

Contract (Semiskilled)

83

0

0

83

0

133

3

0

136

4

223

Total

83

0

0

83

0

133

3

0

136

4

223
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Table 6.4 – Promotions
Occupational Band

Male,
Male,
African Coloured

Male,
Indian

Male,
Total
Blacks

Male,
White

Female, Female, Female,
African Coloured Indian

Female,
Total
Blacks

Female,
White

Total

Top Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

7

0

0

7

0

1

0

0

1

0

8

4

0

0

4

0

3

2

0

5

0

9

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

11

0

0

11

0

4

2

0

6

0

17

Professionally
qualified and
experienced
specialist
Skilled technical
and academically
qualified worker
Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision making
Unskilled and defined
decision making
Total

Table 6.5 – Terminations
Occupational Band

Male,
Male,
Male,
African Coloured Indian

Male,
Total
Blacks

Male, Female, Female,
White African Coloured

Female,
Indian

Female,
Total
Blacks

Female,
White

Total

Top Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior Managers

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

1

0

2

3

0

0

0

0

0

5

6

0

0

6

2

0

0

0

0

0

8

8

0

0

8

7

4

1

0

5

4

24

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

1

15

1

0

16

13

4

1

0

5

4

38

Professionally
qualified and
experienced
specialists and
mid-management
Skilled technical
and academically
qualified workers,
junior management,
supervisors
Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision making
Unskilled and defined
decision making
Contract Senior
Managers
Total
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SPECIAL PROJECT CONTRACT EXPIRY, SHORT TERM LESS THAN SIX MONTHS
Occupational Band

Male,
Male,
African Coloured

Male,
Indian

Male,
Total
Blacks

Male,
White

Female,
African

Female,
Coloured

Female,
Indian

Female,
Total
Blacks

Female,
White

Total

Interns

8

0

0

8

0

14

0

0

14

0

22

Contract
(Semi-skilled)

79

0

0

79

0

130

4

0

134

3

216

Total

87

0

0

87

0

144

4

0

148

3

238

Male,
Indian

Male,
Total
Blacks

Male,
White

Female,
African

Female,
Coloured

Female,
Indian

Female,
Total
Blacks

Female,
White

Total

0

6

3

0

0

0

0

0

9

Male,
Total
Blacks

Male,
White

Female,
African

Female,
Coloured

Female,
Indian

Female,
Total
Blacks

Female,
White

Total

Table 6.6 - Disciplinary action
Occupational Band

Total

Male,
Male,
African Coloured

6

0

Table 6.7 - Skills development
Occupational Band

Male,
Male,
Male,
African Coloured Indian

Legislators, Senior
officials and
managers

8

0

2

10

1

6

1

0

7

1

19

Professionals

14

1

0

15

3

13

0

2

15

1

34

Technicians
and associate
professionals

40

2

0

42

3

32

2

2

36

7

88

Clerks

15

1

0

16

0

42

3

0

45

3

64

7

1

0

8

0

4

0

0

4

0

12

50

2

3

55

7

20

0

0

20

0

82

40

3

0

43

15

26

0

0

26

0

84

8

0

0

8

1

4

0

0

4

0

13

182

10

5

197

30

147

6

4

157

12

396

Service and sales
workers
Craft and machine
operators and
assemblers &
other
Plant and machine
operators and
assemblers
Elementary
occupations
Total

70
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7.

Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members

All members of the SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific time frames.
Information regarding the signing of performance agreements by SMS members, the reasons for not complying
within the prescribed time frames and disciplinary steps taken is presented here..
Table 7.1 - Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2018
Total number of
funded SMS posts

Total number of SMS
members

Total number of
signed performance
agreements

Signed performance
agreements as % of
total number of SMS
members

Senior Management Service Band A

13

11

11

100

Senior Management Service Band B

6

6

6

100

Senior Management Service Band C

4

3

3

100

Senior Management Service Band D

1

0

0

0.0

Total

24

20

20

100

SMS Level

Table 7.2 - Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS members as on
31 May 2018
Reasons
Full compliance
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8.

PERFORMANCE

To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during the
year review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender and disability (Table 8.1), critical occupations
(Table 8.3) and salary bands for SMS (Table 8.4).
Table 8.1 - Performance rewards by race, gender and disability
Description

Number of
Beneficiaries

Total
Employment

Percentage
of Total
Employment

Cost

Average Cost per
Beneficiary

(R’000)

(R)

African, Female

106

225

47.1

1 221

11 523

African, Male

107

243

44.0

1 421

13 381

Asian, Female

3

5

60.0

134

44 960

Asian, Male

0

6

0.0

0

0

Coloured, Female

8

10

80.0

73

9 243

Coloured, Male

8

16

50.0

77

9 700

Total Blacks, Female

117

240

48.8

1 430

12 224

Total Blacks, Male

115

265

43.4

1 509

13 125

White, Female

34

50

68.0

445

13 103

White, Male

36

52

69.2

501

13 937

Employees with a disability

1

9

11.1

6

6 393

535

616

49.2

3 893

12 849

Total

Table 8.2 - Performance rewards by salary band for personnel below senior management service
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Salary Band

Number of
Beneficiaries

Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2)

Percentage
of Total
Employment

Total
Employment

Cost

Average Cost per
Beneficiary

(R’000)

(R)’

6

8

75.0

41

6 918

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

146

286

51.0

1 096

7 509

Highly Skilled production (Levels 6-8)

117

178

65.7

1 519

12 988

Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9-12)

29

63

46,0

986

34 010

Contract Lower skilled (Levels 1 -2)

0

7

0.0

0

0

Contract Skilled (Levels 3-5)

0

35

0.0

0

0

Interns and Apprentices

0

19

0.0

0

0

298

596

50.0

3 642

12 227

Percentage
of Total
Employment

Cost

Average Cost per
Beneficiary

(R’000)

(R)’

Total

Table 8.3 - Performance rewards by critical occupation
Critical Occupation

Number of
Beneficiaries

Photographic, Lithographic and
Related
Printing management and supervisory
personnel

Total
Employment

6

10

60.0

74

12 391

24

38

63.2

489

20 408

Binding and related workers

17

32

53.1

194

11 442

Total

47

80

58.8

757

16 141

Table 8.4 - Performance related rewards (Cash Bonus) by salary band for senior management service

SMS Band

Number of
Total
Beneficiaries Employment

Percentage
of Total
Employment

Cost

Average
Cost per
Beneficiary

(R’000)

(R)’

% of
SMS
Wage
Bill

Personnel
Cost SMS
(R’000)’

Senior Management Service Band A

4

11

36.4

193

48 308

1.6

11 916

Senior Management Service Band B

1

6

16.7

56

56 366

0.7

8 172

Senior Management Service Band C

0

3

0.0

0

0

0.0

6 041

Senior Management Service Band D

0

0

0.0

0

0

0.0

0

TOTAL

5

20

25.0

249

49 810

1.0

26 131
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9.

FOREIGN WORKERS

The tables below summarized the employment of foreign nationals in the Government Printing Works in terms
of salary bands and major occupations. The table also summarized changes in the total number of foreign
workers in each salary band and by each major occupation.
Table 9.1 - Foreign workers by salary band
Major Occupation

Employment
Percentage of
at Beginning
Total
Period

Employment
at End of
Period

Percentage
of Total

Change in
Employment

Percentage
of Total

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Senior management (Levels 13-16)

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Total

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Table 9.2 - Foreign workers by major occupation
Major Occupation

Employment
Percentage of
at Beginning
Total
Period

Employment
at End of
Period

Percentage Change in Percentage
of Total
Employment
of Total

Top Management

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Senior Managers

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Unskilled and defined decision making

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Total

0

0.0

0

0.0

0

0.0

Professionally qualified and experienced
specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically
qualified workers, junior management,
supervisors
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision
making

74
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10.

LEAVE UTILIZATION FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY 2018 TO 31 DECEMBER 2018

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public
service. The following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave (Table 10.1) and disability leave
(Table 10.2). In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.
Table 10.1 - Sick leave 1 January 2018 till 31 December 2018
% Days with
Total Days
Medical
Certification

Salary Band

Number of
Employees
using Sick
Leave

% of Total
Employees
using Sick
Leave

Average
Days per
Employee

Estimated
Cost

Total number
of days with
medical
certificates

(R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

34

58.8

8

1.5

4

19

20

1 634

71.7

209

38.9

8

1 324

1 172

1 004

69.4

134

25.0

7

1 361

697

304

67.8

53

9.9

6

778

206

62

66.1

13

2.4

5

260

41

Contract Skilled (Levels 3-5)

215

50.2

93

17.3

2

145

108

Contract Senior management
(Levels 13-16)

14

100

2

0.4

7

73

14

Interns and Apprentices

124

48.4

25

4,7

5

44

60

3 391

68.4

537

100

6

4 005

2 318

Skilled (Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9-12)
Senior management
(Levels 13-16)

Total

Table 10.2 -Disability leave (Temporary and Permanent) 1 January 2018 till 31 December 2018

Salary Band

Total Days

% Days with
Medical
Certification

Number of
Employees
using
Disability
Leave

% of Total
Employees
using
Disability
Leave

Average
Days per
Employee

Estimated
Cost

Total number
of days with
medical
certification

Total number
of Employees
using
Disability
Leave

(R’000)

Skilled (Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled
supervision
(Levels 9-12)
Total

42

100

4

44.4

11

33

42

9

42

100

4

44.4

11

65

42

9

7

100

1

11.1

7

17

7

9

91

100

9

100

10.0

115

91

9

75

Table 10.3 - Annual leave for the period 1 January 2018 till 31 December 2018
Total Days Taken

Average per Employee

Number of employees
using annual leave

271

27

10

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

7 122

23

304

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

4 464

24

183

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

1 349

20

66

Senior management (Levels 13-16)

374

21

18

Contract Skilled (Levels 3-5)

406

4

113

Contract Senior management (Levels 13-16)

25

13

2

Interns and Apprentices

550

19

29

14 561

20

725

Salary Band
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

Total

Table 10.4 - Capped Leave for the period 1 January 2018 till 31 December 2018

Salary Band

Total days of
capped leave
taken

Average
Total number
Average
Number of
capped leave
of capped
number of
Employees
per employee
leave
days taken
who took
as at end of
available at
per employee
Capped leave
period
end of period

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

0

0

5

0

14

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

43

4

20

10

1 956

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

20

3

29

6

2 142

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

0

0

26

2

261

Senior management (Levels 13-16)

0

0

51

0

153

Total

63

7

131

18

4 526

Table 10.5 - Leave Pay-outs for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019
Reason

Total Amount

Number of Employees Average per Employee

(R’000)

(R)

Leave payout for 2018/19 due to non-utilisation of leave for
the previous cycle
Capped leave payouts on termination of service for
2018/19
Current leave payout on termination of service for 2018/19
due to retirements / death.

39

2

19 500

849

8

31 000

248

8

31 000

Current leave payout on termination of service for 2018/19

328

12

27 333

1 464

30

28 766

Total

76

GPW A nnua l R e po r t 2 0 18 /19

11.

HIV/AIDS & HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES

Table 11.1 - Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure
Government Printing Works participated in several initiatives for health promotion.
Table 11.2 - Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes [tick Yes/No and provide required
information]
Question

Yes

1. Has the department designated a member of the SMS
to implement the provisions contained in Regulation 55
of the Public Service Regulations, 2016? If so, provide
her/his name and position.



Ms Michelle Modise; General Manager Human
Resources

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it
designated specific staff members to promote the health
and well-being of your employees? If so, indicate the
number of employees who are involved in this task and
the annual budget that is available for this purpose.



3 Employees. No dedicated budget

3. Has the department introduced an Employee
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for your
employees? If so, indicate the key elements/services of
this Programme.

No

Details, if yes



4. Has the department established (a) committee(s) as
contemplated in Regulation 55 (d) of the Public Service
Regulations, 2016? If so, please provide the names of
the members of the committee and the stakeholder(s)
that they represent.



Health & Safety Committee

5. Has the department reviewed its employment policies
and practices to ensure that these do not unfairly
discriminate against employees on the basis of their HIV
status? If so, list the employment policies/practices so
reviewed.



Occupational Health and Safety Policy

6. Has the department introduced measures to protect
HIV-positive employees or those perceived to be HIVpositive from discrimination? If so, list the key elements
of these measures.



Primary Healthcare Service and Health talks

Constant communication

7. Does the department encourage its employees to
undergo Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If so, list the
results that you have you achieved.



Employees have attended Wellness days
where health screenings have been conducted

8. Has the department developed measures/indicators
to monitor & evaluate the impact of its health promotion
programme? If so, list these measures/indicators.



Monthly reports from clinic

77

12.

LABOUR RELATIONS

Table 12.1 - Collective agreements, 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017
None
Table 12.2 – Misconduct and Disciplinary Hearings Finalised
Outcomes of disciplinary hearings

Number

Percentage of Total

Corrective counseling

1

11.1

Written warning

2

22.2

Final written warning

5

55.6

Suspended without pay

1

11.1

Total

9

100

Table 12.3 - Types of Misconduct Addressed and Disciplinary Hearings
Type of misconduct

Number

% of total

Insubordination

2

22.1

Unlawful disclosure of information

1

11.1

Assault

2

22.2

Unauthorized absenteeism and late coming

2

22.2

Improper conduct

2

22.2

Total

9

100

Number

% of total

Resolved

12

25.0

Not resolved

36

75.0

Total

48

100

Number

% of total

Upheld

2

50.0

Dismissed

0

0.0

Settlement
Total

2

50.00

4

100

Table 12.4 - Grievances Lodged
Number of grievances addressed

Table 12.5 - Disputes Lodged
Number of disputes addressed

Table 12.6 - Strike Actions
Strike Actions

(R’000)

Total number of person working days lost

201

Total cost (R'000) of working days lost

102
0

Amount (R'000) recovered as a result of no work no pay

78
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Table 12.7 - Precautionary Suspensions
Precautionary Suspensions

Total

Number of people suspended

1

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days

1

Average number of days suspended

47

Cost (R'000) of suspensions

111

13.

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

Table 13.1 - Training needs identified 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Occupational categories

Number of
employees as at
1 April 2018

Training needs identified at start of reporting period
Learnership &
Internships

Skills Programmes and
Other Short Courses

Total

Male

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

Legislators, Senior officials and
managers

11

10

0

0

19

8

19

8

Professionals

24

11

0

0

81

42

81

42

83

44

0

0

60

47

60

47

24

76

5

6

19

22

24

28

Service and sales workers
Craft and machine operators and
assemblers & other
Plant and machine operators
and assemblers

16

4

0

0

8

5

8

5

65

33

6

5

87

56

93

61

82

84

0

0

54

26

54

26

Elementary occupations

7

10

0

0

7

0

7

0

312

272

11

11

335

206

346

217

Technicians and associate
professionals
Clerks

Total

Table 13.2 - Training Provided 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Occupational categories

Number of
employees as at
1 April 2018

Training needs identified at start of reporting period
Learnership &
Internships

Skills Programmes and
Other Short Courses

Total

Male

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

Legislators, Senior officials and
managers

11

10

0

0

32

26

32

26

Professionals

24

11

0

0

25

22

25

22

83

44

0

0

11

15

11

15

24

76

5

6

111

137

116

143

16

4

0

0

36

8

36

8

65

33

6

5

52

34

41

22

82

84

0

0

4

0

22

23

7

10

0

0

20

5

5

5

312

272

11

11

291

247

302

258

Technicians and associate
professionals
Clerks
Service and sales workers
Craft and machine operators
and assemblers & other
Plant and machine operators
and assemblers
Elementary occupations
Total

79

Table 13.3 – Internship & Apprentice Programme 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019
Government Printing Works Internship and Learner programme details are as follows:No of interns

Unit

Male

Female

Total

Learner Programmes

8

12

20

Internship Programmes

6

5

11

Total

14

17

31

Male

Female

Total

Legislators, Senior officials and managers

0

1

1

Professionals

1

0

1

Technicians and associate professionals

0

0

0

Clerks

9

11

20

Service and sales workers

1

2

3

Craft and machine operators and assemblers and other

1

0

1

Plant and machine operators and assemblers

0

0

0

Elementary occupations

0

0

0

Total

12

14

26

Table 13.4 – Study Bursaries Granted 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019
Occupational category

14.

INJURY ON DUTY

The following table provides basic information on injury on duty.
Table 14.1 - Injury on Duty
Nature of injury on duty

Number

% of total

Required basic medical attention only

81

93.1

Temporary Total Disablement

6

6.9

Permanent Disablement

0

0.0

Fatal

0

0.0

Total

87

100

80
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15.

UTILIZATION OF CONSULTANTS

Table 15.1 - Report on consultant appointments
Total number of
consultants that worked
on project
4

Duration

R’000

As required

12 328

Intervate Solutions

3

As required

13 893

De Swardt Vogel Myabo

3

As required

594

Ismail and Dahya Inc

3

As required

10

Makhubela Attorney Inc

2

As required

209

Mampeule Attorney Inc

2

As required

49

Masondo Attorneys

2

As required

18

NT Mchunu Incoperated

2

As required

1 114

Seanego Attorneys Inc

2

As required

232

Van Der Merve Du toit Inc

2

As required

99

Altech information Technologies

5

As required

2,048

HolmJordaanMeago

2

As required

3 926

A2A Kopano Inc

4

As required

1 656

Manroland South Africa

3

As required

2 004

Muhlbauer ID Services

4

As required

6 329

OG Projects

3

As required

1 241

Rebone Marapo Pty Ltd

4

As required

587

SA Banknote

2

As required

1 057

Pitney Bowes

6

As required

5 968

Thunderbolt Solutions

1

As required

483

Ubuntu Printers

2

As required

333

Workforce Healthcare

1

As required

646

Focus Risk & Training Services

1

6 Months

354

Project title Total
DAC Systems

Total

63

55 180

Table 15.2 - Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 2018 31 March 2019
Reasons
GPW does not have appropriate funds
Table 15.3 - Report on consultant appointments using donor funds for the period 1 April 2018 31 March 2019
Reasons
GPW has not obtained donor funds

81

AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

82
8
2
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ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITIES AND
APPROVAL
The Accounting Officer is required in terms of the

The focus of risk management in the entity is on

Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999 No

identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring

1 of 1999 to maintain adequate accounting records

all known forms of risk across the entity. While

and is responsible for the content and integrity

operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the

of the Annual Financial Statements and related

entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that

financial information included in this report. It is her

appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and

responsibility to ensure that the Annual Financial

ethical behaviour are applied and managed within

Statements fairly present the state of affairs of the

predetermined procedures and constraints.

entity as at the end of the financial year and the
results of its operations and cash flows for the period

The Accounting Officer is of the opinion, based

then ended, in conformity with IFRS. The external

on the information and explanations given by

auditors are engaged to express an independent

management, that the system of internal control

opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.

provides reasonable assurance that the financial
records may be relied on for the preparation of

The Annual Financial Statements are prepared in

the Annual Financial Statements. However, any

accordance with International Financial Reporting

system of internal financial control can provide only

Standards (IFRS) except where directed by National

reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against

Treasury (NT) and are based upon appropriate

material misstatement or loss.

accounting

policies

consistently

applied

and

supported by reasonable and prudent judgements

The Accounting Officer have reviewed the entity’s

and estimates.

cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2020
and, in light of this review and the current financial

The Accounting Officer acknowledges that she is

position, she is satisfied that the entity has or

ultimately responsible for the system of internal

had access to adequate resources to continue in

financial control established by the entity and

operational existence for the foreseeable future.

places considerable importance on maintaining
a strong control environment. To enable the

The annual financial statements set out on pages

Accounting Officer to meet these responsibilities,

92 to 127, which have been prepared on the going

the Accounting Officer sets standards for internal

concern basis, was approved by the Accounting

control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in

Officer on 17 October 2019.

a cost effective manner. The standards include the
proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly
defined framework, effective accounting procedures
and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored

Approval of financial statements
__________________________________
MS A FOSI
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
17 OCTOBER 2019

throughout the entity and all employees are required
to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring
the entity’s business is conducted in a manner that
in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON
GOVERNMENT PRINTING WORKS
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified opinion

equipment stated at R986 101 000 disclosed

1.

in note 3 to the financial statements as it was

I have audited the financial statements of the

impracticable to do so. Additionally, I was not

Government Printing Works set out on pages 93

able to determine the consequential impact on

to 127, which comprise the statement of financial

deferred income, cost of sales, other operating

position as at 31 March 2019, the statement of

income, other operating expenses, profit for the

profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

year and retained earnings.

statement of changes in equity, and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, as well as

Trade and other receivables

the notes to the financial statements, including

4. The government component did not recognise

a summary of significant accounting policies.

estimated credit losses in accordance with
2. In my opinion, except for the possible effects of

IFRS 9, Financial instruments. The estimated

the matters described in the basis for qualified

credit losses assessment performed by the

opinion section of my report, the

financial

government component did not adequately

statements present fairly, in all material respects,

support the allowance for estimated credit

the financial position of the Government Printing

losses stated at R27 770 000 disclosed in note

Works as at 31 March 2019, and financial

6 to the financial statements. As a result, I was

performance and cash flows for the year then

unable to determine the correct balance for

ended in accordance with International Financial

trade and other receivables stated at R215 698

Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements

000 as it was impracticable to do so.

of the Public Finance Management Act of South

Irregular expenditure

Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA).

5. The government component did not include the
required information on irregular expenditure

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

in note 28 to the financial statements, as

Property, plant and equipment

required by section 40(3)(b)(i) of the PFMA.

3. The government component did not review the

contravention of the supply chain management

useful lives of property, plant and equipment

requirements, resulting in irregular expenditure

in accordance with International Accounting

of R62 112 067.

Standards

(IAS)

16,

Property,

The government component made payments in

plant

and

equipment. In addition, some items of property

Context for the opinion

plant and equipment were not depreciated

6. I conducted my audit in accordance with the

in line with the accounting policy. As a result,

International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).

there were property, plant and equipment that

My responsibilities under those standards

had a zero net carrying amount while still being

are further described in the auditor-general’s

in use. I was unable to determine the impact

responsibilities for the audit of the financial

on the carrying amount of property, plant and

statements section of this auditor’s report.

86

GPW A nnua l R e po r t 2 0 18 /19

7.

I

am

independent

of

the

government

13. In preparing the financial statements, the

component in accordance with sections 290

accounting officer is responsible for assessing

and 291 of the International Ethics Standards

the Government Printing Works’ s ability to

Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as

professional accountants (IESBA code), parts

applicable, matters relating to going concern

1 and 3 of the International Ethics Standards

and using the going concern basis of accounting

Board for Accountants’ International Code of

unless the appropriate governance structure

Ethics for Professional Accountants (including

either intends to liquidate the government

International Independence Standards) and the

component or to cease operations, or has no

ethical requirements that are relevant to my

realistic alternative but to do so.

audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA codes.

14. My

8. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained

objectives

assurance

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

are

about

to

obtain

whether

reasonable

the

financial

statements as a whole are free from material

for my qualified opinion.

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my

Emphasis of matter

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

9. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit

is not modified in respect of this matter.

conducted in accordance with the ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it

Financial reporting framework

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or

10. As disclosed in the accounting policies, the

error and are considered material if, individually

government component obtained departure in

or in aggregate, they could reasonably be

terms of section 79 of the PFMA from preparing

expected to influence the economic decisions

the financial statements in accordance with

of users taken on the basis of these financial

Modified Cash Standards prescribed by National

statements.

Treasury. The financial statements have been

15. A further description of my responsibilities for

prepared in accordance with IFRS.

the audit of the financial statements is included

11. In addition, as disclosed in note 19 to the

in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

financial statements, the financial statements

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE REPORT

have been prepared in accordance with IFRS for
the first time.

Responsibilities of accounting officer for the
financial statements

Introduction and scope
16. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of

12. The accounting officer is responsible for the

South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA)

preparation and fair presentation of the financial

and the general notice issued in terms thereof,

statements in accordance with IFRS and the

I have a responsibility to report material findings

requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal

on

control as the accounting officer determines

against predetermined objectives for selected

is necessary to enable the preparation of

programmes

financial statements that are free from material

performance report. I performed procedures to

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

identify findings but not to gather evidence to

the

reported

presented

express assurance.

87

performance
in

information
the

annual

17. My

procedures

performance

address

information,

the
which

BRANCH - OPERATIONS AND
PRODUCTION

reported
must

be

based on the approved performance planning
I have not evaluated the completeness and

Percentage development of newly identified
and approved security products

appropriateness of the performance indicators

21. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate

included in the planning documents. My

audit evidence for the reported achievement

procedures also did not extend to any disclosures

of target (100% newly identified and approved

or assertions relating to planned performance

security product developed). This was due to

strategies and information in respect of future

the target not being specific in clearly identifying

periods that may be included as part of the

the nature and required level of performance,

reported performance information. Accordingly,

inadequate technical indicator descriptions or

my findings do not extend to these matters.

proper performance management systems

documents of the government component.

and processes that predetermined how the
achievement would be measured, monitored

18. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of
the

reported

performance

information

and reported. I was unable to confirm the

in

reported achievement by alternative means.

accordance with the criteria developed from

Consequently, I was unable to determine

the performance management and reporting

whether any adjustments were required to the

framework, as defined in the general notice,
for

the

following

selected

achievement of the target as reported in the

programmes

annual performance report.

presented in the annual performance report of
the government component for the year ended

BRANCH - STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT

31 March 2019:
Programmes

Pages in the annual
performance report

Branch - Operations and
Production
Branch - Strategic
Management
Branch - Office of the CEO

Percentage implementation of the approved
security plan

39

22. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence for the reported achievement

40 – 41

of target (100% of the approved security plan

38

implemented). This was due to the target

19. I performed procedures to determine whether

not being specific in clearly identifying the

the reported performance information was

nature and required level of performance,

properly presented and whether performance

inadequate technical indicator descriptions or

was consistent with the approved performance

proper performance management systems

planning

further

and processes that predetermined how the

procedures to determine whether the indicators

achievement would be measured, monitored

and related targets were measurable and

and reported. I was unable to confirm the

relevant, and assessed the reliability of the

reported achievement by alternative means.

reported performance information to determine

Consequently, I was unable to determine

whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

whether any adjustments were required to the

documents.

I

performed

achievement of the target as reported in the

20. The material findings in respect of the usefulness

annual performance report.

and reliability of the selected programmes are
as follows:
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BRANCH - OFFICE OF THE CEO

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LEGISLATION

Percentage availability of ICT systems
23. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit

Introduction and scope

evidence for the reported achievement of target

27. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice

(100% system availability). This was due to the

issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to

target not being specific in clearly identifying

report material findings on the compliance of the

the nature and required level of performance,

government component with specific matters in

inadequate technical indicator descriptions or

key legislation. I performed procedures to identify

proper

findings but not to gather evidence to express

performance

management

systems

and processes that predetermined how the

assurance.

achievement would be measured, monitored and
reported. I was unable to confirm the reported

28. The material findings on compliance with specific
matters in key legislations are as follows:

achievement by alternative means. Consequently,
I was unable to determine whether any

Annual financial statements

adjustments were required to the achievement of
the target as reported in the annual performance

29. The financial statements submitted for auditing

report.

were not prepared in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework as

Other matters

required by section 40(1) (b) of the PFMA.

24. I draw attention to the matters below.
30. Material misstatements of non-current assets,

Achievement of planned targets

current assets and disclosure items identified

25. Refer to the annual performance report on pages

by the auditors in the submitted financial

33 to 43 for information on the achievement of

statements were corrected, but the uncorrected

planned targets for the year and explanations

material misstatements resulted in the financial

provided for the under/over achievement of a

statements receiving a qualified opinion.

number of targets. This information should be
considered in the context of the material findings
on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information in paragraphs 21 to 23

Expenditure management
31. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken
to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by

of this report.

section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury
regulation 9.1.1. As reported in the basis for

Adjustment of material misstatements

qualified opinion the value as disclosed in note 28

26. I identified material misstatements in the annual

of the financial statements does not reflect the

performance report submitted for auditing. These

full extent of the irregular expenditure incurred.

material misstatements were on the reported
performance information of Branch - office of the
CEO. As management subsequently corrected

Procurement and contract management

only some of the misstatements, I raised material

32. Some of the goods and services with a

findings on the usefulness and reliability of the

transaction value below R500 000 were procured

reported performance information. Those that

without obtaining the required price quotations,

were not corrected are reported above.

as required by treasury regulation 16A6.1.
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Other information

Internal control deficiencies

33. The accounting officer is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report. The
other information does not include the financial
statements, the auditor’s report and those
selected programmes presented in the annual
performance report that have been specifically
reported in this auditor’s report.

37. I considered internal control relevant to my audit
of the financial statements, reported performance
information and compliance with applicable
legislation; however, my objective was not to
express any form of assurance on it. The matters
reported below are limited to the significant
internal control deficiencies that resulted in the
basis for the qualified opinion, the findings on the
annual performance report and the findings on
compliance with legislation included in this report

34. My opinion on the financial statements and
findings on the reported performance information
and compliance with legislation do not cover the
other information and I do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
35. In connection with my audit, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements and the selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report, or
my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

38. Management did not adequately prepare accurate
and complete financial and performance reports
that are supported and evidenced by reliable
information; as a result, there were material
misstatements and adjustments to the financial
statements and annual performance report.
39. Management did not adequately review and
monitor compliance with applicable laws and
regulations; as a result, there was material noncompliance identified during the audit.

36. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude
that there is a material misstatement in this other
information, I am required to report that fact.
I have nothing to report in this regard.

Pretoria
17 October 2019
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ANNEXURE – AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE AUDIT
1.

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs,

financial statements. I also conclude, based

I exercise professional judgement and maintain

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a

professional scepticism throughout my audit of

material uncertainty exists related to events or

the financial statements, and the procedures

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the

performed on reported performance information

Government Printing Works ability to continue

for selected programmes and on the government

as a going concern. If I conclude that a material

component’s compliance with respect to the

uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention

selected subject matters.

in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements about the material

Financial statements

uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the

to modify the opinion on the financial statements.

financial statements as described in this auditor’s

My conclusions are based on the information

report, I also:

available to me at the date of this auditor’s report.

•

However, future events or conditions may cause

Identify and assess the risks of material

a government component to cease continuing as

misstatement of the financial statements whether

a going concern.

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

content of the financial statements, including the

to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not

disclosures, and whether the financial statements

detecting a material misstatement resulting from

represent the underlying transactions and events

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Communication with those charged with
governance
3. I communicate with the accounting officer

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant

regarding, among other matters, the planned

to the audit in order to design audit procedures

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not

findings, including any significant deficiencies in

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the government component’s
internal control
•

internal control that I identify during my audit.
4. I also confirm to the accounting officer that I

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies

used

and

the

reasonableness

of

accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the accounting officer.
•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

•

•

Conclude

on

the

appropriateness

have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding

independence,

and

communicate

all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my
independence and, where applicable, related

of

the

accounting officer’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the
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safeguards.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
2019

2018

Note(s)

R ‘000

R ‘000

Property, plant and equipment

3

986 101

813 514

Intangible assets

4

19 751

28 988

1 005 852

842 502

Assets
Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
Inventories

5

307 407

205 950

Trade and other receivables

6

215 698

296 090

Cash and cash equivalents

7

2 209 888

2 151 807

2 732 993

2 653 847

3 738 8 45

3 496 349

2 539 926

2 314 645

528 254

525 273

3 068 180

2 839 918

12

438 621

492 364

Trade and other payables

10

226 527

159 128

Provisions

9

5 517

4 939

232 044

164 067

670 665

656 431

3 738 845

3 496 349

Total Assets
Contributed Capital and Liabilities
Contributed Capital
Capital fund
Retained Earnings
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred income
Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Total Contributed Capital and Liabilities
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
2019

2018

Note(s)

R ‘000

R ‘000

Revenue

13

1 497 015

1 405 476

Cost of sales

14

(773 999)

(711 835)

723 016

693 641

57 542

71 442

(21 095)

(16 479)

(232 874)

(225 196)

526 589

523 408

Interest received

1 672

1 865

Profit for the year

528 261

525 273

Total comprehensive income for the year

528 261

525 273

Gross profit
15

Other operating income
Loss on foreign exchange
Other operating expenses

16

Operating profit
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
Capital fund

Surplus
distributable to
National Treasury

Net assets

R ‘000

R ‘000

R ‘000

1 822 688

591 957

2 414 645

-

525 273

525 273

Profit transferred to Capital Fund

491 957

-

491 957

Total comprehensive income for the year

491 957

525 273

1 017 230

Transfer of Treasury approved surplus to Capital Fund

-

(491 957)

(491 957)

Transfer of surplus to National Treasury

-

(100 000)

(100 000)

Total contributions by and distributions to owners of
company recognised directly in equity

-

(591 957)

(591 957)

2 314 645

525 274

2 839 919

-

528 261

528 261

Profit transferred to Capital Fund

225 281

-

225 281

Total comprehensive income for the year

225 281

528 261

753 542

Transfer of Treasury approved surplus to Capital Fund

-

(225 281)

(225 281)

Transfer of surplus to National Treasury

-

(300 000)

(300 000)

Total contributions by and distributions to owners of
company recognised directly in equity

-

(525 281)

(525 281)

2 539 926

528 254

3 068 180

Balance at 01 April 2017
Profit for the year

Balance at 01 April 2018
Profit for the year

Balance at 31 March 2019
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

528 261

525 273

Depreciation

64 120

81 695

Amortisation

9 237

9 383

Losses on foreign exchange

21 095

16 479

Interest received

(1 672)

(1 865)

578

351

(53 743)

(69 391)

(101 457)

(13 224)

Trade and other receivables

80 392

(17 190)

Trade and other payables

46 306

(53 506)

Cash generated from operations

593 117

478 005

1 672

1 865

594 789

479 870

Note(s)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Provisions
Deferred Income
Changes in working capital:
Inventories

Interest received
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

3

(236 707)

(101 175)

Purchase of other intangible assets

4

-

(2 457)

(236 707)

(103 632)

(300 000)

(100 000)

58 082

276 238

2 151 806

1 875 569

2 209 888

2 151 807

Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Transfer of surplus to National Treasury
Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year
7

Total cash at end of the year
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Government Printing Works is established as a Government Component in terms of the Public Services
Act and is domiciled in South Africa. The address of its registered office and principal place of business are
149 Bosman street, Pretoria. It’s principal activities are the printing of security documents (such as passports
and Smart ID Cards) and general printing services for the Department of Home Affairs and other government
departments at national, provincial and local government levels.
The GPW has obtained a departure from the Accountant-General from the Modified Cash basis in terms
of section 79 of the PFMA and hence the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Framewerk (IFRS), and the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999
(No 1 of 1999) (as amended by Act No 29 of 1999). The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below.
The Government Printing Works (GPW) concluded that the annual financial statements fairly present the
entity’s statement of financial position, statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income and
statement of cash flow.
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out
below.
1.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with, and in
compliance with, International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), which include all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and the requirements of the
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999 No 1 of 1999 of South Africa, as amended.
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, except for financial
assets. They are presented in Rands, which is the entity’s functional currency.
In 2018/19, the entity has initially applied the new and revised IFRS’s issued by the IFRS Organisation that are
first effective (or available for early adoption) for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. A
change in accounting policies resulting from the entity’s application of these IFRS’s is set out in note 19.
These are GPW’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS’s and IFRS 1 First Time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to IFRS’s
has affected the reported financial period, performance and cash flows of the entity is provided in note 19.
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1.2

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to
time, to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Use of available information and the application of
judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. These estimates and associated assumptions are
based on experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in any future periods affected.
Significant judgements include allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables, allowances for slow
moving inventory, residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods, employee obligations and asset
impairment tests. Other judgements made relate to classifying financial assets and liabilities into categories.
1.3

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the entity holds for its own use or for rental to others
and which are expected to be used for more than one year.
An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is
directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing
costs on qualifying assets and adjustments in respect of hedge accounting, where appropriate.
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, except for land and buildings which are stated at revalued
amounts. The revalued amount is the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management.
Depreciation is charged to write off the asset’s carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated
residual value, using a method that best reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are
consumed by the entity. Leased assets are depreciated in a consistent manner over the shorter of their
expected useful lives and the lease term. Depreciation is not charged to an asset if its estimated residual value
exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the
asset is classified as held for sale or derecognised.
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The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation method

Useful life

Buildings

Straight line

20 years

Land

Straight line

Indefinitely

Plant and equipment

Straight line

1-10 years

Office Furniture

Straight line

6 years

Motor vehicles

Straight line

5 years

Computer equipment

Straight line

3 years

Leasehold improvements

Straight line

20 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting
year.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost
of the item is depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount
of another asset.
Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may
be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher
than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring
the carrying amount in line with the recoverable amount.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carrying amount of the item, is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.
1.4

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

An intangible asset is recognised when:
•

it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
entity; and

•

the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and comprise of software.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when
it is incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised when:
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•

it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.

•

there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

•

there is an ability to use or sell it.

•

it will generate probable future economic benefits.

•

there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the asset.

•

the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are revised at the end of each reporting period with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset - measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying value of the asset - are recognised in profit and loss when
the asset is derecognised.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values
as follows:
Item

Useful life

Computer software

3-5 years

1.5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments held by the entity are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments.
Impairment of investments and other financial assets – after the adoption of IFRS 9:
The entity recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on the financial instruments that are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss. The entity considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
financial assets and assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis.
The entity considers the credit risk on a financial instrument is low if the financial instrument has a low risk
of default, the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the debtor to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of the receivable impairment charges
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account. Changes in the carrying amount of the receivable impairment charges account are recognised in
profit or loss. The receivable is written off against the receivable impairment charges account when the entity
has no reasonable expectations of recovering the receivable.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of expected credit losses decreases, the reversal would be adjusted to
the receivable impairment charges account at the reporting date. The amount of any reversal is recognised in
profit or loss. Financial instruments held by the entity are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS
9 Financial Instruments.
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CLASSIFICATION
Trade and other receivables, excluding, when applicable, VAT and prepayments, are classified as financial assets
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances for credit losses
(note 6).
RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT
A receivable is recognised when the entity’s right to consideration is unconditional. A right to consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the entity has an unconditional right to consideration, the amount is presented as
a contract asset. Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowance
for credit losses (see note 6). A contract asset is recognised when the entity recognises revenue before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses in accordance with the policy set out in note 6 and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration has become unconditional. A contract liability
is recognised when the customer pays consideration, or has an unconditional right to consideration (in such
case, a corresponding receivable is recognised), before the entity recognises the related revenue.
Before 2018, at the end of each reporting period, the entity assessed whether there was any objective evidence
that a receivable or group of receivables was impaired. Impairment losses on trade and other receivables
were recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
and were measured as the difference between the receivable’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at its
original effective interest rate, i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The impairment
loss is reversed if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised. The amortised cost is
the amount recognised on the receivable initially, minus principal repayments, plus cumulative amortisation
(interest) using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES CLASSIFICATION
Trade and other payables (note 10), excluding VAT and amounts received in advance, are classified as financial
liabilities, initially measured at fair value and, after initial recognition, at amortised cost, except for payables
with no stated interest rate and the effect of discounting being immaterial that are measured at their original
invoice value.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held and owned by the Paymaster General.
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
1.6

LEASES

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership.
OPERATING LEASES – LESSEE
Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease, except where it
is immaterial in relation to the total lease payments and where variable escalation forms part of the payments.
Operating leases are those leases that do fall within the scope of the above definition. Operating lease rentals
are expensed as they become due.
1.7

INVENTORIES

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value determined on standard cost.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of inventories of items that are not
ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for specific projects is assigned
using specific identification of the individual costs.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, are
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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1.8

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The entity assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to are versal of an impairment loss does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other
than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
1.9

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS MEDICAL BENEFITS

The GPW provides medical benefits for its employees in accordance with Public Service conditions of service
benefits. These benefits are funded by employer and employee contributions. Employer contributions to the
fund are expensed as money is paid to the fund. No provision is therefore made for medical benefits in the
financial statements of the GPW. The GPW does not bear any responsibility for medical benefits for employees
who have retired.
PENSION FUNDS
The GPW contributes to the Government Employees Pension Fund in respect of employer’s contribution to
the fund, as prescribed by law and therefore recognised as an expense in the accounting period. No provision
is made for pension retirement benefits in the financial statements of the GPW as the pension scheme is
administered by National Treasury (NT). Once the employees leave the auspices of the GPW, he/she becomes
a pension member under the auspices of NT and has no relationship with the GPW.
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TERMINATION BENEFITS
Termination benefits are recognised and expensed only when payment is made and the actual costs are
reflected. These benefits are pro rata leave and pro rata service bonus when an employee resigns or when an
employee retires.
1.10

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

Where, at the reporting date, the GPW has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and it is probable that GPW will settle the obligation, a provision is made in the statement of financial position.
Provisions are made using best estimates of the amount required to settle the obligation and are discounted
to present values using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. Changes in estimates are reflected in profit or loss in the period they
arise. Warranty provisions are measured using probability models based on past experience. Restructuring
provisions are only recognised once the formal plan has been communicated to affected parties.
Contingent liabilities of GPW are not recognised but disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent liabilities represent possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of GPW. They are not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Inevitably, the determination that the possibility that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote and that the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events is not wholly within
the control of GPW, requires significant judgement.
COMMITMENTS
A commitment is an agreement between two or more parties that is binding on those parties to the degree
that to renege on the agreement will be costly.
Commitments represent orders issued to suppliers that have been approved, but where no delivery has taken
place as at year-end, and contractual commitments.
The GPW discloses the amount of contractual commitments by the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A contingent liability is a present obligation that arises from past events, but which is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are included in the disclosure notes.
CONTINGENT ASSETS
Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that are not wholly with in the control of
the GPW and give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits or service potential to the entity.
Contingent assets are not recognised.
1.11

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
•

the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and

•

the grants will be received.

The deferred income relating to grants is recognised on the following basis: Capital contributions on plant and
equipment. The deferred income will be credited to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the useful life of the asset starting when the asset is brought into use.
1.12

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
taking into account the amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the entity. Provided that
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the revenue transaction will flow to the entity and
the revenue and the costs, if any, in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised
as listed below.
After the adoption of IFRS 15, the entity recognises revenue from contracts with customers when (or as)
the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a
customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset. When (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, the entity recognises as revenue the amount of the transaction price
(which excludes estimates of variable consideration that are constrained in accordance with IFRS 15) that is
allocated to that performance obligation. Further details of the entity’s revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:
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SALES OF GOODS
Revenue from the sales of good is recognised when the entity has delivered the goods to the customers and
the customer has accepted the goods together with the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.
1.13

INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is recognised as other income as it accrues using the effective interest method.
1.14

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA, is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure,
incurred in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of any applicable legislation, including
the Public Finance Management Act, No 1 of 1999 or the Treasury Regulations issued interms of the Act.
National Treasury Practive Note 4 of 2008/2009, which was issued in terms of section 76(1) to 76(4) of the
PFMA, requires that from 1 April 2009 irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current
financial year and that was condoned before year-end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements
is recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is taken
except that the note of the financial statements is updated.
All irregular expenditure is recorded in the annual financial statements the period in which it is incurred and is
disclosed separately.
Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and where recovered, is subsequently accounted for as revenue in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following
financial year, the register and disclosure note to the financial statements is updated with the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and that was not
condoned by National Treasury or the relevant authority, is recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure
register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account is created if such
a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person
concerned. If recovery is not possible, the Accounting Officer may write off the amount as debt impairment
and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. If the irregular expenditure has not been
condoned and no person is liable per law, the expenditure related there to remains against the relevant
expenditure item, and is disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in
the irregular expenditure register.
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1.15

FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the
statement of comprehensive income and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
1.16

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATIONS
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date when
the fair value was determined. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

1.17

RELATED PARTIES

The entity operates in an economic sector dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South
African Government. All departments and public entities in the national sphere of government as well as key
management personnel of the entity are considered to be related parties. In terms of IAS 24, the entity has
chosen to apply the exemption offered under par 25 and only disclose the transactions and balances of related
parties falling under the portfolio of the Minister of Home Affairs (see note 20). All related party transactions
were conducted at arms’ length.
1.18

FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value of an investment on initial recognition
is normally the transaction price, unless it is estimated by using a valuation technique when part of the
consideration given or received is for something other than the investments. After initial recognition, the
fair value of an investment quoted in an active market is based on the unadjusted quoted price and, for
investments not quoted in an active market, the entity establishes the fair value of such investment by using
a valuation technique.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

106

GPW A nnua l R e po r t 2 0 18 /19

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
2019

2018

R’000

R’000

2 New Standards and Interpretations
In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial
year and that are relevant to its operations:
2.1 Standards and interpretations not yet effective
The entity has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2019 or later periods:
Standard/Interpretation:

Effective date: Years
beginning on or after

Expected impact:

IFRS 16 Leases: IFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model 01 January 2019
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is
of low value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. A lessee
measures right-of-use assets similarly to other non- financial assets
(such as property, plant and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly
to other financial liabilities. As a consequence, a lessee recognizes
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into
a principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
statement of cash-flows.

Impact is currently being
assessed

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts: IFRS 17 requires that insurance contract 01 January 2021
liabilities be calculated at the present value of future insurance cash
flows with a provision for risk.

Unlikely there will be a
material impact

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: IFRIC 23 was 01 January 2019
developed to address how to reflect uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes.

Unlikely there will be a
material impact
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3. Property, plant and equipment
2019

2018

R‘000

R‘000

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

Land

23 829

-

23 829

23 829

-

23 829

Buildings

29 239

(5 826)

23 413

29 239

(4 369)

24 870

Plant and machinery

1 196 460

(666 046)

530 414

1 007 984

(619 421)

388 563

Furniture and fixtures

25 350

(19 771)

5 579

21 928

(18 319)

3 609

Motor vehicles

880

(880)

-

880

(880)

-

IT equipment

126 298

(100 849)

25 449

106 180

(91 754)

14 426

Leasehold improvements

110 837

(35 278)

75 559

110 837

(29 787)

81 050

Capital - Work in progress

301 858

-

301 858

277 167

-

277 167

1 814 751

(828 650)

986 101

1 578 044

(764 530)

813 514

Opening
balance

Additions

Depreciation

Total

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Land

23 829

-

-

23 829

Buildings

24 870

-

(1 457)

23 413

Plant and machinery

388 563

188 476

(46 625)

530 414

Furniture and fixtures

3 609

3 422

(1 452)

5 579

IT equipment

14 426

20 118

(9 095)

25 449

Leasehold improvements

81 050

-

(5 491)

75 559

Capital - Work in progress

277 167

24 691

-

301 858

813 514

236 707

(64 120)

986 101

Total

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018
Opening

Additions

Transfers

Depreciation

Total

balance
Land

20 129

3 700

-

-

23 829

Buildings

26 326

-

-

(1 456)

24 870

Plant and machinery

426 745

24 123

-

(62 305)

388 563

Furniture and fixtures

4 122

953

-

(1 466)

3 609

IT equipment

20 106

5 479

-

(11 159)

14 426

Leasehold improvements

82 715

-

3 644

(5 309)

81 050

Capital - Work in progress

213 891

66 920

(3 644)

-

277 167

794 034

101 175

-

(81 695)

813 514

108

GPW A nnua l R e po r t 2 0 18 /19

Capital Commitments
The GPW is committed to incur capital expenditure of R 18 548 235 (2018: R 35 875 972) with regard to the leasehold
improvements and R 19 473 002 (2018: R 90 208 661) with regards to plant and equipment.
4.

Intangible assets

Computer software

2019

2018

R’000

R’000

Cost

Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying
value

Cost

Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying
value

67 631

(47 880)

19 751

67 631

(38 643)

28 988

Opening
balance

Amortisation

Total

R’000

R’000

R’000

28 988

(9 237)

19 751

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019

Computer software
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018
Opening
balance

Additions

Transfers

Amortisation

Total

Computer software

28 106

-

10 265

(9 383)

28 988

Intangible assets under development

7 808

2 457

(10 265)

-

-

35 914

2 457

-

(9 383)

28 988

2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

243 527

148 907

Work in progress

3 168

2 168

Finished goods

54 991

50 939

Consumables

9 807

5 771

311 493

207 785

(4 086)

(1 835)

307 407

205 950

5. Inventories
Raw materials

Inventories (write-downs)

Inventories are valued consistent to previous years. During the year under review an increase in the allowance of slow moving
and obsolete stock amounting to R 2 250 990 (2018: decrease of R 3 656 605) was passed. Slow moving and obsolete stock
amounting to R2 443 614 (2018:R66 452) were written off during the current financial year.
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2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

Trade receivables

226 802

276 880

Loss allowance

(27 770)

(20 054)

Trade receivables at amortised cost

199 032

256 826

Other receivable

16 666

39 264

Total trade and other receivables

215 698

296 090

6. Trade and other receivables
Financial instruments:

Categorisation of trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are categorised as follows in accordance with IFRS 9: Financial Instruments:
At amortised cost

215 698

296 090

Exposure to credit risk
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the majority of trade receivables being owed by
Government departments. Management believes that no additional credit risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is
inherent in the entity’s trade receivables.
Trade and other receivables (continued)
Loss Allowance
As at 31 March 2019 trade and other receivables in the amount of R 27 769 516 (2018: R 20 054 360) were considered to be
impaired.
Opening balance in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

(20 054)

(21 778)

Opening balance in accordance with IFRS 9

(20 054)

(21 778)

Remeasurement of loss allowance - comparative

(7 716)

1 724

Closing balance

(27 770)

(20 054)

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in operating expenditure in the statement of
comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

110

GPW A nnua l R e po r t 2 0 18 /19

Credit risk disclosures
Trade and other receivable past due but not impaired
Trade receivables are subject to an expected credit loss approach in recognising any impairments. The ageing of trade receivables
with the allowance for credit loss is provided below:
2019

Current

30 days

60 days

90 days

120 days

Total

Gross trade receivables
Allowance for credit losses

124 429

18 393

11 003

10 372

24 570

188 767

(1 244)

(368)

(550)

(1 038)

(24 570)

(27 770)

123 185

18 025

10 453

9 334

-

160 997

2018

Current

30 days

60 days

90 days

120 days

Total

Gross trade receivables
Allowance for bad debts

145 425

10 423

9 821

4 359

17 465

187 491

(1 454)

(208)

(491)

(436)

(17 465)

(20 054)

143 971

10 215

9 330

3 923

-

167 437

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of trade and other receivable mentioned
above. The entity does not hold any collateral as security.
Fair value of trade and other receivables
The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying amounts.
7. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

Cash on hand

84

75

Bank balances

65 964

128 979

2 143 840

2 022 753

2 209 888

2 151 807

2 314 645

1 822 688

225 281

491 957

2 539 926

2 314 645

7.

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Paymaster General

8.

Capital fund

Balance at the beginning of the year
Transfer of the National Treasury’s approved surplus

The Capital Fund originated through the transfer of net surplus in previous years after the approval of the National Treasury was
obtained for the necessary transfers. The purpose of the fund is the financing of the operations and capital expenditure of the
GPW.
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9. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2019
Service bonus
Reconciliation of provisions - 2018
Service bonus

Opening
balance

Additions

Total

4 939

578

5 517

Opening
balance

Additions

Total

4 588

351

4 939

The service bonus payable is based on an employee’s monthly salary on date when the bonus is due. Bonus payable to employees
is only applicable if an employee is still in the service of the entity or else on a pro rata basis in instances of retirement, ill-health
and death.
2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

Trade payables

123 905

66 425

Other payables

98 338

87 776

Accrued expense - Capped leave

4 284

4 927

226 527

159 128

10. Trade and other payables
Financial instruments:

Exposure to liquidity risk
Refer to note 24 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of liquidity risk exposure and management.
Trade and other payables (continued)
Fair value of trade and other payables
Included in other payables are the following: Unallocated deposits of R 38 981 041 (2018: R 11 066 139), VAT of R 5 321 651
(2018: R 16 580 559) and debtors with credit balances of R 1 512 730 (2018: R 1 008 532). The fair value of trade and other
payables approximates their carrying amounts.
The entity changed its leave policy in 2002 due to the new dispensation, The entity capped all employees’ unused leave from
the previous years prior to June 2000, limiting employees to take such leave during their working life at the entity under specific
conditions. Capped leave is payable, based on the salary notch at the date of termination, which is only applicable if the termination
of service is as a result of retirement, ill-health, death and specific leave conditions.
Accrued capped leave pay

4 926

5 567

Opening balance

(642)

(641)

Movement

4 284

4 926
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11. Operating leases
The GPW leases offices for it’s Zandfontein, East London and Publications’ premises and also has a lease agreement for forklift
rentals. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows:
2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

R ‘000

Up to 1 year

1 to 5 years

More than
5 years

5 479

7 620

-

R ‘000

R ‘000

R ‘000

Up to 1 year

1 to 5 years

More than
5 years

589

3006

-

12. Deferred income
For the year under financial review, the GPW did not receive any contribution from National Treasury. The deferred income relating to
previous years’ contributions towards the transformation of the GPW, including the procurement of new production equipment, will
be credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the useful life of the asset starting when the asset is brought into use.
2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

Opening balance

492 364

561 755

Deferred income released through depreciation

(53 742)

(69 391)

438 622

492 364

1 497 015

1 405 476

13. Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue

The GPW’s revenue consists of the sale of security printing, standard documents, rubber stamps and other publications, including
the Government Gazettes.
2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

459 067

415 207

7 274

6 597

Employee costs

124 651

114 719

Depreciation and impairment

59 576

76 936

Manufacturing expenses

123 431

98 376

773 999

711 835

14. Cost of sales
Sale of goods
Amortisation on intangible assets
Manufactured goods:
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Sale of goods
Contract Printing

105 288

87 083

Cost of sales - Strategy and Marketing

353 779

328 124

459 067

415 207

53 742

69 391

218

248

Discount received

3 447

1 447

Other recoveries

135

356

57 542

71 442

2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

3 531

6 551

41 404

36 713

187 741

168 399

Housing subsidies

8 035

6 460

Machine rate recovery

16 045

14 033

32

24

Performance bonuses

5 021

7 501

Pension Fund contributions

18 202

16 028

Total employee costs

235 076

212 445

Less: Employee costs included in cost of merchandise sold and inventories

(124 651)

(114 719)

Total employee costs expensed

110 425

97 726

15. Other operating income
Deferred income
Bad debts recovered

16. Operating profit (loss)
Operating profit for the year is stated after charging the following, amongst others:
Auditor’s remuneration - external
Audit fees
Administrative expenses
Administrative and managerial services
Employee costs
Salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits

Staff training
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Depreciation and amortisation

2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

64 121

81 695

Amortisation of intangible assets

1 962

2 786

Amortisation of intangible assets included in cost of merchandise sold

7 274

6 597

Total depreciation and amortisation

66 083

84 481

Less: Depreciation included in cost of merchandise sold and inventories

(59 576)

(76 936)

Less: Amortisation of intangible assets included in cost of merchandise sold

(7 274)

(6 597)

Total depreciation and amortisation expensed

6 507

7 545

17. Employee costs
As at 31 March 2019 the entity had 616 permanent and seasonal employees (2018: 604). Employee benefits expense is made up
of the following for all employees:
Direct employee costs

2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

Basic

81 090

73 492

Bonus

5 397

4 946

Medical aid - entity contributions

7 027

6 410

Bargaining Council levies

33

29

Leave pay provision charge

769

2 753

Housing subsidies

4 681

3 576

Overtime paid

13 726

11 388

Staff training

32

1

2 955

4 206

Performance bonuses and long term service awards
Pension fund contributions

8 941

7 918

124 651

114 719

Basic

82 870

72 657

Bonus

5 646

5 272

Medical aid - entity contributions

4 919

4 582

Bargaining Council levies

22

20

Leave pay provision charge

(32)

(1 762)

Housing subsidies

3 354

2 884

Overtime paid

2 319

2 645

-

23

Performance bonus and long term service awards

2 066

3 295

Pension fund contributions

9 261

8 110

110 425

97 726

Direct employee costs

124 651

114 719

Indirect employee costs

110 425

97 726

Total employee costs

235 076

212 445

Indirect employee costs

Resettlement cost
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18. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses
Depreciation

2019

2018

R ‘000

R ‘000

Property, plant and equipment

4 545

4 759

Amortisation

1 962

2 786

Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment

6 507

7 545

19. First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
The financial statements of GPW have previously been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of General Accepted
Accounting Practice (SA GAAP), and the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (as amended by Act No.
29 of 1999). During the 31 March 2019 financial year, GPW has applied International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) IFRS 1,
First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, to provide a starting point for the reporting under International
Financial Reporting and Accounting Standards. On principle these standards have been applied retrospectively and the 2018
comparatives contained in these annual financial statements differ from those published in the annual financial statements
published for the year ended 31 March 2019. There was no impact of IFRS 1.
Although SA GAAP and IFRS are in most circumstances consistent, the main changes occurred due to the introduction of IFRS 9 and
IFRS 15.
As this was the first time of implementation, GPW has adopted all new accounting standards that became effective in the current
reporting period. The following standards had an impact on GPW:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9); and
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (IFRS15).
The adoption of these accounting policies were applied in accordance with the modified retrospective approach whereby no
comparative figures are restated but instead, a cumulative catch-up adjustment is recognised, if necessary, in opening retained
earnings.
IFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (IFRS 15)
The GPW adopted the new standard of recognising revenue from contracts with customers, effective for years beginning 1 January
2018. This standard combines, enhances and replaces specific guidance on recognising revenue from contracts with customers
with a single standard. IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue
is recognised. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations. Under IFRS 15,revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled for transferring goods or services
to a customer.
It defines a new 5 step-model to recognise revenue from customer contracts, which requires:
•

The identification of the contract with customers;

•

Identify the performance obligation in the contract;

•

Determining the transaction price;

•

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligation; and

•

Recognising the revenue as the performance obligation has been met.
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The implementation of IFRS 15 had no impact on the GPW’s previously reported earnings and headline earnings.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9)
The GPW adopted for first time implementation, IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments. IFRS 9 was issued by the IASB in July 2014 and is
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and introduces new requirements for:
•

the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities;

•

the impairment of financial assets; and

•

general hedge accounting.

•

classification, measurement and derecognition

The GPW has assessed the impact of the business model on the classification of financial instruments in terms of IFRS 9. Based
on this assessment, there has been no change in the classification of the GPW’s financial assets and financial liabilities. The GPW’s
financial assets and liabilities remain classified as carried at amortised cost.
Impairment assessment
Before the adoption of IFRS 9 the GPW calculated the allowance for credit losses using the incurred loss model. Under the incurred
loss model, the GPW assessed whether there was any objective evidence of impairment at the end of each reporting period. If such
evidence existed the allowance for credit losses in respect of financial assets at amortised cost were calculated as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and its recoverable amount, being its present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original EIR.
Under IFRS 9 the GPW calculates the allowance for credit losses based on expected credit losses (ECL) for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The GPW applies the simplified approach to determine the ECL for trade receivables and contract assets.
This results in calculating lifetime ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. ECLs for trade receivables is mainly calculated
using a provision matrix.
The above adoption in accounting policy has not resulted in a material difference for the year ended 31 March 2019 by performing
the 2018 provision calculation based on the IFRS 9 requirements and consequently the opening retained earnings has not been
adjusted.
There has been no change in the classification of the GPW’s financial assets and financial liabilities as all financial assets and
liabilities remain at amortised cost.
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19. First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
Reconciliation of equity at 01 April 2017
(Date of transition to the new standards)
R ‘000

R ‘000

As reported under
previous GAAP

IFRS

Property, plant and equipment

794 034

794 034

Intangible assets

35 914

35 914

Total non-current assets

829 948

829 948

Inventories

192 724

192 724

Note

Trade and other receivables

278 900

278 900

Cash and cash equivalents

1 875 569

1 875 569

Total current assets

2 347 193

2 347 193

Deferred Income

561 755

561 755

Trade and other payables

196 153

196 153

4 588

4 588

762 496

762 496

Total assets less total liabilities

2 414 645

2 414 645

Capital fund

1 822 688

1 822 688

591 957

591 957

2 414 645

2 414 645

Current tax liability
Total liabilities

Retained Earnings
Total equity
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First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
R ‘000

R ‘000

As reported under
previous GAAP

IFRS

Property, plant and equipment

813 514

813 514

Intangible assets

28 988

28 988

Total non-current assets

842 502

842 502

Inventories

205 950

205 950

Trade and other receivables

296 090

296 090

Other receivables

2 151 807

2 151 807

Total current assets

2 653 847

2 653 847

Deferred income

492 364

492 364

Trade and other payables

159 127

159 127

Reconciliation of equity at 31 March 2018

Note

Provisions

4 939

4 939

656 430

656 430

Total assets less total liabilities

2 839 919

2 839 919

Capital fund

2 314 645

2 314 645

525 274

525 274

2 839 919

2 839 919

Total liabilities

Retained Earnings
Total equity
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20. Related parties
Relationships
Ultimate controlling entity
Reporting entity

GPW is a government component of the South African Government

Members of key
management

The Ministry of Home Affairs
Ms J Meyer - Acting Chief Executive Officer
Ms N Moyo - General Manager Special Products
Ms M Modise - General Manager Human Resources
Ms A Fosi - General Manager Strategic Management
Mr A Apleni - Chief Information Officer
Mr S Ngubane- Chief Director Operations
Mr K Moodley - Chief Director Productions
Ms E Grobler - Chief Director Financial Management
Ms B Mbele - Chief Director Marketing and Stakeholder Relations
Mr J Rossouw - Director Policies and Planning
Ms L Mahlangu - Director Organisational Development and Talent Management
Mr T Khumalo - Director Para Security Printing
Ms M Nsibande - Director Operations Planning
Mr M Mudau - Director High Security Printing
Mr S Rizvi - Director Supply Chain Management
Mr T Mamorare - DirectorCosting
Ms C Shibambo - Director Internal Audit
Mr D Legoabe - Director Security
Mr N Dlamini - Director: Marketing
Mr A Sibanyoni - Director Strategic Support

`
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Related party balances
Amounts included in Trade receivables regarding related parties
The DHA

2019

2018

54 701

50 689

2019

2018

839 802

843 796

Related party transactions
The following transactions pertaining to the major related parties to the GPW are disclosed:
Sales to the DHA
21. Emoluments
2019

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Basic salary

Flexible portion
of package

Performance
bonus

Acting
allowance

Total

Acting Chief Executive Officer Ms Moyo (see note 1 below)

590

302

-

276

1 168

Acting Chief Executive Officer Ms Meyer (see note 1 below)

375

376

-

138

889

General Manager: tFinancial
Management (see note 1 below)

506

325

-

-

831

General Manager: Special Products
(see note 1 below)

421

244

-

-

665

General Manager: Human Resources

971

591

-

-

1 562

General Manager:
Strategic Management

881

628

-

-

1 509

Chief Information Officer

833

357

-

-

1 190

Chief Director: Production

871

414

-

105

1 390

Chief Director: Operations

845

403

56

40

1 344

Chief Director: Financial Management

995

467

-

-

1 462

Chief Director: Marketing and
Stakeholder Relations

871

416

-

-

1 287

Director: Policies and Planning

747

350

50

-

1 147

Director: Organisational Development
and Talent Management

714

336

48

-

1 098

Director: Operations Planning

736

345

49

-

1 130

Director: Operations

704

332

48

-

1 084

Director: High Security Printing appointed 1 May 2018

586

303

-

-

889

Director: Supply Chain Management

829

385

-

-

1 214

Director: Costing

703

332

-

-

1 035

Director: Internal Audit

659

498

-

-

1 157

Director: Security

703

332

-

-

1 035

Director: Marketing

703

332

-

-

1 035

Director: Strategic Support

653

332

-

-

985

Consultant: Operations and Production
(see note 2 below)

646

277

-

-

923

16 542

8 677

251

559

26 029
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Note 1: Ms. N Moyo stepped down as Acting Chief Executive Officer on 31 October 2018 and assumed the position of General
Manager: Special Products. She was replaced by Ms. J Meyer. Before her appointment as Chief Executive Officer, Ms Meyer was the
General Manager: Financial Manager and Chief Finance Officer of GPW.
Note 2: The position of Consultant: Production and Operations was held by Mr. J Engelbrecht, who retired as General Manager:
Production and Operations on 30 September 2017. His consulting contract ended on 31 October 2018. The position of General
Manager: Production and Operations is alternated between the Chief Director: Production and Chief Director: Operations until such
time that a formal appointment can be made.
21. Emoluments (continued)
2018

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Basic salary

Flexible
portion of
package

Performance
bonus

Acting
allowance

Leave
discounting

Total

Acting Chief Executive Officer - Ms Moyo

960

656

-

201

-

1 817

General Manager: Operations and
Production

554

245

-

-

574

1 373

General Manager: Financial Management

823

600

-

-

-

1 423

General manager: Human Resources

916

430

-

-

-

1 346

General Manager: Strategic Management

823

586

-

-

-

1 409

Chief Information Officer

597

282

-

-

-

879

Chief Director: Production

813

385

108

77

-

1 383

Chief Director: Operations

789

417

53

45

-

1 304

Chief Director: Financial Management

930

435

-

-

-

1 365

Chief Director: Marketing and Stakeholder
Relations

813

385

-

-

-

1 198

Director: Policies and Planning

694

324

-

-

-

1 018

Director: Organisational Development and
Talent Management

664

312

-

-

-

976

Director: Operations

684

321

-

-

-

1 005

Director: Marketing appointed 13 September 2017

365

161

-

-

-

526

Director: Supply Chain Management

782

360

-

-

-

1 142

Director: Costing appointed 1 October 2017

332

136

-

-

-

468

Director: Internal Audit

613

436

-

-

-

1 049

Director: Security

664

311

-

-

-

975

Director: Operations Planning

664

312

-

-

-

976

Director: Strategic Support appointed 16 October 2017

278

137

-

-

-

415

Consultant: Operations and Production

437

187

-

-

-

624

Director: Information and Communication
Technology - resigned 18 November 2017

420

234

-

54

39

747

14 615

7 652

161

377

613

23 418
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2019

2018

R’000

R’000

Audit committee members

400

409

Risk Committee members

130
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22. Remuneration to Committee Members

Ministerial Advisory committee members

-

23

530

558

23. Prior period errors
The Government Printing Works made the following reclassifications to amounts listed as Prepaid expenses:
- Photoclicks for ID cards and Passports were reclassified as Inventory - Raw Materials
The reclassification was the result of a more stringent interpretation of IAS 2.
The correction of the errors results in adjustments as follows:
Statement of Financial Position
Inventory

-

1 968

Trade and Other Receivables

-

(1 968)

In prior years deferred income was incorrectly included as part of the Changes in Working Capital on the Statement of Cash Flows.
This was corrected with the amounts being shown as a non-cash flow adjustment to the Profit before Taxation.

24. Financial instruments and risk management
Categories of financial instruments
Categories of financial assets
2019

R’000

R’000

R’000

Note(s)

Amortised
cost

Total

Fair value

Trade and other receivables

6

200 431

200 431

200 431

Cash and cash equivalents

7

2 209 888

2 209 888

2 209 888

2 410 319

2 410 319

2 410 319

R’000

R’000

R’000

Note(s)

Amortised
cost

Total

Fair value

Trade and other receivables

6

260 814

260 814

260 814

Cash and cash equivalents

7

2 151 807

2 151 807

2 151 807

2 412 621

2 412 621

2 412 621

2018
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24.1 Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
Categories of financial liabilities
2019

R’000

R’000

R’000

Note(s)

Amortised
cost

Total

Fair value

10

182 064

182 064

182 064

Trade and other payables

2018

R’000

R’000

R’000

Note(s)

Amortised
cost

Total

Fair value

10

131 478

131 478

131 478

Trade and other payables
24.2 Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
Financial risk management
Overview
The entity is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
• Credit risk;
• Liquidity risk; and
• Market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the entity if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations.
Expected credit loss risk
The entity has the following financial asset that is subject to the ECL Model:
* Trade receivables
Simplified parameter-based approach – ECL is calculated using a formula incorporating the following parameters: Exposure at
Default (EAD), Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) discounted using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) (i.e. PD x LGD
x EAD = ECL). Exposures are mainly segmented by customer type and macro-economic factors. The probability of a customer
defaulting as well as the realised loss with defaulted accounts has been determined using historical data (12 months and 48 months
respectively). The EIR represents a weighted average rate which is representative of the portfolio of customers and incorporates
a risk-free rate plus a risk premium on initial recognition of the trade receivables. The group has considered quantitative forward
looking information such as inflation rate, country risk premium, political risk premium and macro-economic factors. Qualitative
assessments has also been performed, of which the impact was found to be immaterial.
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The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:
2019

2018

Gross
carrying
amount

Credit loss
allowance

Amortised
cost / fair
value

Gross
carrying
amount

Credit loss
allowance

Amortised
cost / fair
value

Trade and other receivables

6

243 468

(27 770)

215 698

316 144

(20 054)

296 090

Cash and cash equivalents

7

2 209 888

-

2 209 888

2 151 807

-

2 151 807

2 453 356

(27 770)

2 425 586

2 467 951

(20 054)

2 447 897

Liquidity risk
The entity is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they
become due.
The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk,
are presented in the following table. The cash flows are undiscounted contractual amounts.
24.3 Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
Foreign currency risk
The entity is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of certain transactions and borrowings which are denominated in foreign
currencies. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising foreign forward exchange contracts
where necessary. The foreign currencies in which the entity deals primarily are US Dollars, Euros, British Pounds and Japanese
Yen.
Exchange rates
2019

2018

R’000

R’000

Rand per unit of foreign currency:
Euro

16,388

14,540

British Pound

18,997

-

Interest rate risk
Fluctuations in interest rates impact on the value of investments and financing activities, giving rise to interest rate risk.
Price risk
The entity is not exposed to commodity price risk.
There have been no significant changes in the price risk management policies and processes since the prior reporting period.
25. Events after the reporting period
Events that occurred after the reporting date, but before the financial statements were authorised for issue, were considered.
There were no events that indicated evidence of any adverse or favourable conditions that existed on reporting date that should
be adjusted for.
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26. Rental of Buildings
Certain buildings occupied by the GPW are owned and provided by the Department of Public Works (DPW)
27. Unauthorised expenditure
There was no unauthorised expenditure during the period
2019

2018

R’000

R’000

Opening balance

242 754

181 067

Add: Irregular expenditure - current year

18 246

61 687

-

-

261 000

242 754

5 969

30

Contract amended or extended without approval from National Treasury

-

3 158

Overtime more than 30%

-

3 796

734

-

11 543

54 703

18 246

61 687

28. Irregular Expenditure

Less: Amounts condoned

Less than three quotations obtained and reason for deviation not justifiable

No approval obtained for deviation from procurement policy
B-BBEE points awarded without verification of supporting documentation

The investigations with regards to the irregular expenditure were concluded in the 2017/2018 financial year. Consequence
management steps have been taken against employees. A request for condonation for the prior year irregular expenditure was
submitted to the National Treasury and the GPW is awaiting feedback on the request.
29. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
There was no fruitless and wasteful expenditure during the period.
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